NOTICE AND CALL OF PUBLIC MEETING

GOVERNMENTAL BODY: THE CITY COUNCIL OF CRESCO, IOWA
DATE OF MEETING: JUNE 6, 2022
TIME AND PLACE OF MEETING: 5:30 P.M. CITY HALL, 130 N PARK PLACE

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE ABOVE MENTIONED
GOVERNMENTAL BODY WILL MEET AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SET OUT
ABOVE. THE TENTATIVE AGENDA FOR SAID MEETING IS AS FOLLOWS:

ROLL CALL: KRIENER, McCONNELL, FORTUNE, BOUSKA, CARMAN

ACT ON THE CONSENT AGENDA: All items listed under the consent agenda will be enacted
by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a request is made prior
to the time council votes on the motion.

Approval of the Agenda

Approval of the Claims

Approval of Minutes from May 16, 2022

Approval of Minutes from May 16, 2022 Special Meeting

Approval of Minutes from May 24, 2022 Special Meeting

Approval of Application for Tax Abatement under the Urban Revitalization Plan for

Jeromy and Rachel Sweeney

7. Approval of Alley Closing Permit for the Alley South of the Cresco Public Library for a
Library Prograrm for Farm Day on July 13, 2022

8. Approval of Retail Cigarette and Tobacco Permits for:

Casey’s General Stores, Inc dba Casey’s General Store #2511;

Fareway Stores Inc. dba Fareway Store #815;

JAGDAMBE, LLC dba Cresco Mart;

Aaron & Sheila Wemark dba The Ox & Wren Spirits and Gifts;

Big Daddy Hideaway Corp. dba Sweeney’s Lounge;

Kwik Trip, Inc. dba Kwik Star #428;

g. DOLGENCORP, LLC dba Dollar General #2400

SR B S

e Ao TR

STAFF REPORTS: There may be action taken on each of the items listed below.
1. Public Works
2. Police
a. Qath of Office - Kiersta Walton — Reserve Officer
3. Administration
4. Committee Updates

COMMENTS FROM AUDIENCE: (This portion of the agenda is for comments that are not related to one
of the items listed on the agenda. Comments can only be received. No formal action by the Council can be taken.
Those making public comments will be asked to state their name and address, and to speak from the podium.)

BUSINESS: There may be action taken on each of the items listed below.
1. Public Hearing for Budget Amendment #3 for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022

Page 1 of 3



9.

Resolution Amending the Current Budget for Fiscal Year Ending June 2022 (As Last
Amended on 2/7/22)

Resolution Authorizing Transfer of Funds for FY 2022 (ARPA Grant Transfers)
Resolution Approving the Revised Employee Handbook Effective July 2022
Resolution Approving Wage and Benefit Agreement for Full-Time Non-Union
Employees

Resolution Approving Wage Increases for Specified Permanent Part-Time Employees
Second Reading of Proposed Ordinance 494 Amending Chapter 92.02 and 92.03 of
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cresco, lowa, Pertaining to Water Rates
Second Reading of Proposed Ordinance 495 Amending Chapter 99.02 of the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Cresco, Iowa, Pertaining to Sewer Service Charges
Resolution Approving Contract and Bond for the Project to Convert Existing Tennis
Court to Pickleball for the City of Cresco, Iowa

10. Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to enter into a Professional Services Apgreement

with WHKS for the Downtown Crosswalk Reconconstruction Project

11. Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to enter into an Agreement for Services with Twin

Rivers Engineering Consultants Inc for City Building HVAC Documentation

12. Resolution Approving the Change Order for the Runway Drainage Improvements

Project for the Cresco Municipal Airport

13. Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Sign the Offer of Employment for the Deputy

Clerk Position In-Training for the City Clerk Position

ADJOURN:

THIS NOTICE IS GIVEN AT THE DIRECTION OF THE MAYOR PURSUANT TO
CHAPTER 21, CODE OF IOWA AND THE LOCAL RULES OF SAID GOVERNMENTAL
BODY. POSTED JUNE 4, 2022,

Page 2 of 3



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING - AMENDMENT OF CURRENT BUDGET
City of CRESCO
Fiscal Year July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2022

The City of CRESCO will conduct a public heating for the purpose of amending the current budget for fiscal vear ending June 30, 2022

Meeting Date/Time: 6/6/2022 05:30 PM

Contact: Michelie Elton

Phone: {563} 547-3101

Meeting Location: Cresco City Hall, 130 N Park Place, Cresco, 1A 52136

There will be no increase in taxes. Any residents or taxpayers will be heard for or a
detailed statement of: additional receipls, cash balan

anticipated, will be available at the hearing,

gainst the proposed amendment at the time and place specified above. A
ces on hand at the close of the preceding fiscal year, and proposed disburgements, both past and

Total Budget

REVENUES & OTHER FINANGING SOURCES op £5 Cortiied Arprrent Crotal Budget Adter
Taxes Levied on Property 1 2,085,608 0 2,085,608
Less: Uncollected Delinguent Taxes - Levy Year 2 0 0 0
Neat Current Property Tax 3 2,085,608 4] 2,085,608
Delinquent Property Tax Revenue 4 0 0 0
TIF Revenues 5 a 0 0
Other City Taxes 6 760,250 ¢ 760,250
Licenses & Permits 7 53.900 0 53,900
Use of Monay & Property 8 133,633 23,000 156,633
Intergovemmental @ 1,203,369 4] 1,203,369
Charges for Service 10 2,729,700 -87.200 2,631,800
Special Assessments 11 34,000 4] 34,000
Miscellaneous 12 335,370 157,900 493,270
Other Financing Sources 13 12,400 15,000 27 400
Transfers In 14 2,534,425 141,000 2,675,425
Total Revenues & Other Sources 15 9,882,655 239,000 10,121,655
EXPENDITURES & OTHER FINANCING USES

Fublic Safety 16 1,017,750 -7,500 1,010,250
Public Works 17 1,930,425 7.500 1,937,925
Health and Social Services 18 5400 0 5,400
Culture and Recreation 19 1,437,500 =200 1,437,300
Community and Econemic Development 20 192,400 0 192,400
General Government 21 437,100 -8,000 429,100
Debt Service 22 345,200 0 345,200
Capital Projscts 23 20,000 0 20,000
Total Government Activities Expenditures 24 5,385,775 -8,200 5,377,575
Business Type/Enterprise 25 2,155,000 -124,000 2,031,000
Total Gov Activities & Business Expendituras 26 7,540,775 132,200 7,408,575
Transfers Out 27 2,534,425 141,000 2,675,425
Total Expenditures/Transfers Out 28 10,075,200 8,800 10,084,000
naar, Expoma & Other Seurcss Over 2
Beginning Fund Balance July 1, 2021 30 8,015,510 0 8,015,510
Ending Fund Balance June 30, 2022 31 7,822,065 230,200 8,053,165

Explanation of Changes: Correct Amendment #1 Errors on Form

HVAC study, and donations nat originally budgeted. Expenses decreased due to Sewer Grit

manhols risers project.

- Increase revenuas for Airport prepaid rent, insurance reimbursement, Alliant grant for

project less than budgeted and eflminating the grouting of

05/20/2022 09:20 AM

FPage 3 °f3




Mayor Brenno called the Cresco City Council meeting to order on May 16, 2022, at 5:30
pm. Council Members Kriener, McConneil, Fortune, Bouska, and Carman were present. No
council members were absent.

Bouska made the motion to approve the consent agenda which included approval of the:
agenda; claims; minutes from May 2" and May 4, 2022 meetings; pay request #2 — Final for
$727.50 to Blazek Corporation for the Cyclone and Classifier Replacement Project. Carman
seconded and it passed all ayes.

Public Works Director Widell reported (a) boulevard trees were planted; (b) work was
done around the storm sewer retention pond on 8 Ave to repair washouts by the culvert; (c) a
tile line broke at the WWTP for one of the digestor tanks that will need to be replaced; (d)
yardwaste pick up was done today with the last one this spring on May 31%,

Police Chief Ruroden reported that graduation went well. Eddie Eagle program finished
today at the preschool. New Police Officers Blake Welper and Gatlin Keehner were introduced.
The two Officers conducted their Oath of Office with Mayor Brenno presiding. The officers
were welcomed to the City of Cresco Police Department.

City Clerk Elton reported: (a) the Theatre installed insulation thanks to an Amy Bouska
Trust Energy Efficiency Grant; (b) the Howard County Supervisors are using some of their
ARPA grant to support local agencies affected by COVID. The Library will receive $10,000 and
the Cresco Community Fire will receive $20,000 to be used for special projects or equipment
needed outside of their normal operating budgets. The City is appreciative of the donations.

Carman read a report from Library Director Jordyn Moore, J ordyn graduated with her
Master of Science in Library and Information Science from Syracuse University which is the
highest accreditation in the library field. The City of Protivin denied the request to contract with
the Cresco Public Library and pay a residential fee. Protivin patrons will have the option to
purchase a library card. Summer Library Programs start in June. Privacy proceedings and
processes have been updated, purging expired patron accounts, planning the June book sale,
hotspots are available for checkout, computer and technology help sessions are held
Wednesdays, new patron cards have been ordered, and they are looking for applicants for the
Library Board. The Howard County Library Association will have a free event called “Down on
the Farm™ at the Fair on June 24%.

Mayor Brenno asked for comments from the audience and there were none.

Mayor Brenno opened the Public Hearing to amend Chapters 92 and 99 in the City of
Cresco Code of Ordinances pertaining to water rates and sewer service charges. There were no
oral or written comments and the Public Hearing was closed.

Two quotes were received for the Pickleball Court Project: Heartland Asphalt
$128,826.70; Mehmert Tiling $137,138.07. WHKS reviewed both quotes and recommended
accepting the low quote from Heartland, Bouska made the motion to accept the quote from
Heartland Asphalt and to approve the resolution making award of contract for the Pickleball
Court Project. McConnell seconded and it passed all ayes.

Airport Commission President Gerald Ferrie reported that Josh Dank from Clapsaddle
Garber Associates (CGA) attended their meeting. He explained that if the City would do phase
two of the runway project, which includes replacing sections of damaged concrete, that the
runway would be able to go for a few years before the third phase of overlaying would need to
be done. CGA prepared a grant application requesting 85% from the Iowa DOT of $144,500
with the City committing 15% or $25,500. Carman made the motion to approve the resolution
authorizing the submission of the Application for lowa Airport Improvement Program and
Certifying Eligibility Requirements. McConnell seconded and Fortune, Kriener, Carman and
McConnell voted aye, Bouska voted nay. The motion passed by majority vote. Bouska



commented that her nay vote was because she feels Howard County should be participating with
the airport.

The phase one of the Airport project was for the ranway drainage. The bid was approved
at a prior meeting and now the bonds and contract have been signed and submitted by Mehmert
Tiling. Carman made the motion to approve the resolution approving the contract and bond for
the Airport Runway Drainage Improvements Project for the City of Cresco, Towa. McConnell
seconded and it passed all ayes.

Spiff Slifka reported the Farmer’s Market was not very successful last year. However,
this year she worked with RC&D to get approved for a Federal grant. The new name is Cresco
Iowa Open Air Market. The first Thursday of the month will be at the Dollar Fresh parking lot
with the other Thursdays at Beadle Park. Free books will be given away each week and all types
of vendors are encouraged to participate. Next year Spiff and the Master Gardeners will teach
people how to properly grow a garden in a hay bale and will hopefully have some examples.

Two bids were received for the CDBG Housing Rehab project: Skoda Home
Improvement $25,652; Grube Construction $23,440. Carman made the motion that due to the
bidder’s record of reliability in performance, the Grube Construction bid is rejected and to award
the contract to Skoda Home Improvement in the amount of $25,652, as the lowest responsive,
responsible bid. Bouska seconded and it passed all ayes.

Jim Dietzenbach is requesting to remove his property from the Condominium Plat that
the City approved on September 4, 2019. Bouska made the motion to approve the Resolution
Fixing Time and Place for Public Hearing on Petition to Vacate Plat Regarding Second Avenue
Condominium Complex for June 20, 2022. McConnell seconded and it passed all ayes.

Mayor Brenno performed the first reading of proposed Ordinance 494 amending Chapter
92.02 and 92.03 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cresco, Iowa, pertaining to water rates.
Carman made the motion to approve the first reading of proposed Ordinance 494. Bouska
seconded and it passed all ayes.

Mayor Brenno performed the first reading of proposed Ordinance 495 amending Chapter
99.02 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cresco, Iowa, pertaining to sewer service charges.
Bouska made the motion to approve the first reading of proposed Ordinance 495. McConnell
seconded and it passed all ayes.

Carman made a motion to approve a resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into a
Professional Services Agreement with WHKS & Co. for the 7¢th Street West Reconstruction
Project. Bouska seconded and it passed all ayes.

Bouska made a motion to approve a resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign an
Engagement Agreement with Ahlers & Cooney, PC regarding the municipal sewer system and
Industrial Service Agreements. Carman seconded and it passed all ayes.

McConnell made the motion to set the Public Hearing for June 6, 2022 for Budget
Amendment #3 for fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. Kriener seconded and it passed all ayes.

Carman moved to adjourn the Council Meeting at 6:00 pm. McConnell seconded and it
passed all ayes. The next regular Cresco City Council meeting will be June 6, 2022, at 5:30 pm
at Cresco City Hall.

Mayor David J. Brenno City Clerk Michelle Elton



Following is a list of claims approved for payment:

PAYROLL

ALLIANT

BADGER METER
BAKER&TAYLOR
BLACK HILLS
BLAZEK

BC/BS

BOB'S ELEC
BODENSTEINER
BRUENING
CARDMEMBER
CARQUEST
CARRICO

CIT SEWER SOL
CITY LAUNDERING
CITY OF CRESCO
CITY OF CRESCO
COMPUTERSHARE TRST
CORRIDOR TECH
CR FIRE SAFETY
CR HEATAVENT
CR SHOPPER

CR TPD

DALCO
DECORAH RENTAL
DELUXE ECHOSTAR
ELWOOD,...

EMC INS

EMERG AFPPARATUS
FAREWAY

FENCO

FILLMGRE CNTY JRNL
FIRE SRVC

FORTE PMT

GaLLS

GILLUND
GORDON FLESCH
HANSON TIRE
HAWKEYE SAN
HAWKINS
HEARTLAND ASPH
HOW CO

A DEPT INSP

IA FIN AUTH

IA PRISON IND

JD FIN

JOHNSON CONTR

Elect
Srvc
Books
Gos
Equip
Ins

Srvc
Parts
Rock
Supp
Farts
Chems
Srve
Srve

Ins

Uil
Bond pmt
Sve
Srve
AJC
Ads
Notices
Supp
Srve
Movie
Atmy
Aftny
Rprs
Conces
Parts
Ads
Tmg
Fees
Unif
Supp
Copier
Srve
Gb/frc
Chems
Coldmix
ShrdLEC
Lic
Bond pmt
Supp
Supp
Srve

71,340.76
1.531.44
7.44
476.34
450.47
2,047.50
33.774.34
503.11
99.95
1.342.93
460.35
18.02
31.90
69,681.55
893.46
3.961.27
25.53
311725.00
352.00
581.25
15,713.94
139.00
A479.65
261.83
110.00
40.00
1,292.38
2,500.00
6,292.48
241.46
56.00
137.24
50.00
232.00
71.00
430.50
145.19
522.00
54,445.04
5,982.22
73200
15.429.50
150.00
26.015.00
700.00
987.96
2,331.70

JOSEPH HALL ENT
KEYSTONE LAB

KWIK TRIP

L&H NURSERIES
LEXIPOL

MARCO
MEDIACOM
MEHMERT TILING
MIENERGY
MOELLERS.KEN

MTS

PERFECTION LEARNING
PLUNKETT'S

RUPPERT

SAM'S

SCHNUR ENTERPRISES
SCHUMACHER
SHERWIN-WILLIAMS
SPAHNEROSE
SQUARE
STANARDBASSOC
STATE HYGIENIC
SFEINER, KYLEE

THE COURIER
TREAS,IA

TRUCK COUNTRY
UNIFORM & ACCESS
VISA

WARNER BROS
WINDRIDGE IMP

GENERAL

FIRE STATION BLDG
CRESCO COMM FIRE
ROAD USE TAX
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
FITNESS CENTER TRUST
LIBRARY

DEBT SERVICE

WATER

SEWER OPERATIONS
SEWER PRQJECTS
SEWER SINKING

CAP IMPROVE
YARDWASTE

EXPENDITURES
Revenues 5/3-5{16/22

SpcEvt
Analys
Gaos
Trees
™o
Copier
Phone
Srve
Elect
Lease
Srvc
Supp
Srve
Supp

Supp
Srve

Srve
Supp
Supp
CC fees

Tmg
Ancilys
Rfd
Sub
Taxes
Parts
Supp
Supp
Movie
Supp

3,244.50
2,480.00
5427.31
3,269.21
693.00
2,534.146
313,03
293.72
6,853.81
125.00
55.00
717.44
371.07
315.34
743.92
3,304.00
168.82
108.10
213.62
32.57
83.50
116.50
40.00
571.99
6,480.23
69.24
1.972.41
4,673.91
619.38
159.95

148,394.74
689.49
7.577.27
18.039.80
9,584.48
15.713.94
38.00
311,725,00
22,376.40
98,856.08
727.50
26.015.00
46.60
1.079.15

680,863.45
177,639.74



Mayor Brenno called the Cresco City Council meeting to order on May 16, 2022, at 4:45
pm. Council Members Kriener, McConnell, Fortune, Bouska, and Carman were present. No
council members were absent.

The Council met in a special meeting to discuss City Clerk Elton’s proposal regarding her
possible retirement as Cify Clerk in November 2023. Elton requested a closed session to discuss
her duties, future plans, and potential applicants.

Bouska made the motion to go into closed session at 4:45 pm pursuant to Iowa Code 21.5
(1) (1) per request from the City Clerk. McConnell seconded and it passed all ayes.

Kriener made the motion to go back into open session at 5:23 pm. McConnell seconded
and it passed all ayes.

No formal action was taken during the closed sessions.

Carman moved to adjourn the Council Meeting at 5:23 pm. Bouska seconded and it
passed all ayes. The next regular Cresco City Council meeting will be May 16, 2022, at 5:30 pm
at Cresco City Hall.

Mayor David J. Brenno City Clerk Michelle Elton



Mayor Brenno called the special Cresco City Council meeting to order on May 24, 2022,
at 5:15 pm. Council Members Kriener, McConnell, Fortune, and Carman were present. Council
Member Bouska was absent.

Council members discussed the hiring process for the City Clerk/Treasurer open position.

Carman moved to adjourn the Council Meeting at 6:07 pm. McConnell seconded and it
passed all ayes. The next regular Cresco City Council meeting will be June 6, 2022, at 5:30 pm
at Cresco City Hall.

Mayor David J. Brenno City Clerk Michelle Elton



APPLICATION FOR TAX ABATEMENT UNDER THE
URBAN REVITALIZATION PLAN FOR

CRESCO, IOWA
Date rQ«/ € [xo0aa
Prior Approval for Approval of Improvements
Intended Improvements Completed

Address of Propery:_ A2 3 St Sw resca VA SHZG
Legal Description__ S 15" | obs 114 12 B | Readles Aldn

Title Holder or Contract Buyer: ’SQN"O mq: " RO\ Cffte,\ Lﬁp & e__y\e.u” L

Address of Owner (if different than above);

Phone Number (to be reached during the day):____ﬁ

e

Property Use: ﬁ( Residential Multi-Residential Commercial

Nature of Improvements; E New Construction Rehab/Addition General Improvements

Specify: 90" % <o’ W@L

Estimated or Actual Cost of Improvements: __

Estimated or Actual Date of Completion: E\OA’\ QO ;

f applicable, the name(s) of the tenants (if different than the owner) that occupied the property on
November 3, 2008:

Signed: Q_ad/uﬂ Ska.uu -y

Tax Exemption Schedule:

Residential:  100% exemption on the first $75,000 of actual value added for 3 years.

Multi-Residential/Commercial: 100% exemption of actual value added for 3 years,



STREET CLOSING/PARADE PERMIT

Application Date:S- 245~ 20772 Name; bie YWlorie

Mail toAddress:Z)ZD_ NEWN ST LCresed AA 2723w o
Phone Number: 9103 -547-2540 -

List Streets to Close or Parade Route: DUNOME. | 1\oy A ’ﬁ\\ﬁﬁ

KD AD WK s, onier, Ab KIdC can Sofel ) walk

Event Date: 7\ / 1’3,/9.0 Q22 Time: (from) 10 ‘O Pri (to) 11> DO RAM
Signature of Applicant: . e OC M‘( DI/LEC/ﬁU’Z_,

INCLUDE A MAP M NG THE STREET OR STREETS YOU WISH TO HAVE CLOSED
AND THE INDEMNITY AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT

PARADE REGULATIONS ARE LISTED BELOW.

60.08 PARADES REGULATED. No person shall conduct or cause any parade on any
street except as provided herein:

i. "Parade” Defined. "Parade” means any march or procession of persons or
vehicles organized for marching or moving on the streets in an organized fashion or
manner or any march or processior of persons or vehicles represented or advertised to
the public as a parade.

2 Permit Required. No parade shall be conducted without first obtaining a
written permit from the City Council. Such permit shall state the time and date for the
parade to be held and the streets or general route therefor. Such written permit
granted to the person organizing or sponsoring the parade shall be permission for all
participants therein to parade when such participants have been invited by the
permittee to participate therein. No fae shall be required for such permit. Permit
forms are available at City Hall.

3 Parade Not a Street Obstruction. Any parade for which a permit has been
issued as herein required, and the persons lawfully participating therein, shall not be
deemed an obstruction of the streets notwithstanding the provisions of any other
ordinance to the contrary,

4. Control by Police and Firefighters. Persons participating in any parade shail at
all times be subject to the lawful orders and directions in the performance of their duties
of law enforcement personnel and members of the Fire Department.

ok kol g ek ok o L L 2 e ik bk e okl b ok o F ok ol s sk A

City Council
Date Approved: o Signatare:

CC: Ambulance , Police Dept. , Fire Dlept. . Street Dept.

Street Closing Parade Permit (Rev. 8/2024)



12th ’Qﬂc
F
[-]
™~
b
j
10 n_.uu
Q QQ@\ .“. “ Pm
City of Cresco, Iowa | 3 §
s ;
b= 3
Warner _
Cardoer fost Pk |
Eritkson Industiiol Posk
Tth Ave, E.
ms bﬁut w.
— Woodland R4,
i dth Ave. W, sl
Boward Covaiy — 5 b
olsgrounds _ Zrd Ave. W, .M & _"...“ _..M m Getwood 3. # tt:
] W -u.u. M .IIIM |I|M . .
. 20d Ave. W, N I A . Showd
mL W ) mrn J t _ _ Schroder E..?g
.._M b @ 7 _F,Eu:n -
. g & s [
:mhm.qan... M 20d Ave, E,
3
w
Mwy.9 . Towa Hwy. 9
3rd Ave, SW,
2 et 4 3rd. Ave, SE.
Airport itk Ave, ms..\
h—.m- hf-ﬂ. m.m| -
Sih Ave, Sty
5th Ave. SE,




20216116 pRRpdn)

€20Z/1.20T Jes) [eosid Jo4

suofdusseq g# Juswpuawny jebpng pesodoly

00z'0e2 0088 000'6¢2 payuan siejor
o0z'oee 0088 000662 $jejo]
959'2¢ (850) Swoou) 1en papusuyy | 00Z0EZS dx3 (Jopun) J8AO BNUGARY |30 000'e8 SVLOL
{005°292) 8507 Z## JalpUBIY
00L°¢1 Houd | JuswpUsuny
8627'98 ewoou) Je 1ebpng jewbuo
000's APMS OYAH 271 - RIS JuBIy 18NUL O ObirErFCsL
000'c2 ajejs3 Lejoser - uogeuo() Bl Oy SoLr-errest
0051 8jeja3 urjoIey) - uojeEUCQ 187U Aleigr] soLb-irea
005'51 916353 UBJOIEY) - LOPRUO(Q I15nu) BBBYL S0LY-0Tr-260
000'8 (b s5mo) Jog Bussueieq) JUBWDSINGLUISY PESEAIOU| wodiy - USE)  OLLP08Z-100
000°'L Jusy Jebtey paseatoy) Hoding - UBS)  LIEF-0BZ-100
000°zZZ S0UBADY U) pledAusy pueT pasesiou) Hodipy - uBD) DLE08Z-H00
enuaAay Peses.oU| 000'g JOUT WNWSIY SUp asINqUISY 1984S - UBD)  GLLOLZ-LOO
STVIOL
6629619619 sj08(0rd JoM0G (paadpng uey ssa)) Jeyisserd B SUORAD JuD
19:9G18-€1D 319801 JBMOg (auop Jou) ssesry sjoyue 5z Bugnoss
(sesuad3 peseanag)| e6r9-029-220 wuwpy - 1307 (0619-0Z9-100 PUN Uag) paKebpng sem a1818¢)) - ID
sasuedxs peseesou)| 0SK-DL-LOD Alig - usg UOROBLION WINWISIL SIY UifeaH
000°LE1 000°LPL SWIOL
OL69-056-828 pung Jugid) vy  000°08 00008  suiBdey JOMOSBYISSELD JUG) - JURID VXY ML  PUNL SNUSASY JOMES ESSI-019
D169-056-6Z5 pund e Yy 000°sL 000'SL 5 Amy 9 opeIBdn wELLBIEA - JURIE) VY M1 108001 JNIBAA PEI0LS-209
0189-085-62€ pund e Yy  000°sh 000'sL Sjueweoe|dey BABA - JURIE YaHY Yl BuessdQ JejBM VEB0LE-009
SIGISUBLE|  0L68-09E-10D uodiy - B Q00'LE 000°LE (dx3 sseauay paseanul) Jyoid odiy Y1 Isnu ] Hodipy 0EeY-082-b60
0 0 SIVL0L
ssuadxy g anueasy
0 0 STI0L
SUONEDO|EeY/SUONDRN0N
JUNCaoy wopduoseg  esusdxg enueASY uosesy uopdusseq JUNO20Y
asuadx3 pundg pund  enueaey

. 008213 Jo Ao




RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING TRANSFER OF FUNDS FOR FY 2022
(ARPA GRANT TRANSFERS)

WHEREAS, the City of Cresco authorizes the transfer between funds in the budget based on
estimated revenues and expenses; and

WHEREAS, the transfers were included in the current budget as adopted and amended for
the 2021/2022 Fiscal Year; and

WHEREAS, the City Council committed $110,000 of the ARPA Grant to be used to pay for
maintenance on the Water and Sewer infrastructure including the Sanitary Sewer Critical
Repairs, Grit Cyclone and Classifier Replacement, Watermain Valve Replacements, and a
Watermain Upgrade to Six Inch all paid in this Fiscal Year; and

WHEREAS, to increase the transparency of the accounting for the transfers they are listed
below:

From Fund To Fund Amount Description

#323 ARPA Grant Fund #0600 Water Operating Fund $15,000 Transfer ARPA Grant
for Valve Replacements

#323 ARPA Grant Fund #602 Water Project Fund ~ $15,000 Transfer ARPA Grant
for Watermain Upgrade to Six Inch on Highway 9

#323 ARPA Grant Fund #610 Sewer Revenue Fund  $50,000 Transfer ARPA Grant
for Critical Sewer Main Repairs performed by CIT

#323 ARPA Grant Fund #610 Sewer Revenue Fund  $30,000 Transfer ARPA Grant
for Replacing the Grit Classifier and Cyclone at the Wastewater Plant

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED, that the City of Cresco is allowing the transfer of funds
indicated above and are included in the amended budget for FYE June 30, 2022.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 7™ DAY OF JUNE, 2022

Attest;
Mayor David J. Brenno City Clerk Michelle Elton




RESOLUTION NUMBER

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE REVISED EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

WHEREAS, the Employee Handbook sets out the basic policies and guidelines
for employees of the City of Cresco; and

WHEREAS, the Employee Handbook has been revised to comply with
employment regulations and updated employee benefits effective J uly 1, 2022; and

WHEREAS, all City employees are covered by this handbook, except:
Elected officials;

Members of City boards and commissions;

Persons appointed to serve without compensation: and
Employees hired on a contractual basis; and

Ll e

WHEREAS, employees covered under a collective bargaining unit are also
covered under this Employee Handbook. However, ifa discrepancy occurs then the
collective bargaining agreement will supersede this Employee Handbook.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Cresco, Iowa, that the
revised Employee Handbook be approved and supersedes any previously issued
handbooks or policy statements dealing with the subjects discussed herein.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 6™ DAY OF JUNE, 2022.

ATTEST:

Mayor David J. Brenno City Clerk Michelle Elton



EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

City of Cresco
July 2022



Table of Contents

1.0 WELCOME ..... 4
1.2 AT-WILL EMPLOYMENT ..uevieisiirnrerismcnsassarivaererasasssssnsesessssssssersesssassensossossssssssens 5
2.0 INTRODUCTORY LANGUAGE AND POLICIES 5
2.1 MISSION STATEMENT .......ccoutiuitirerconsurunrmermenraraereresessasrsnsesssensnssssensosseresensssssass 5
2.2 ETHICS CODE ....ceicviterirtininasssnsissnsmennesessenstsnenssnsessssssmessasssssasesenassnssosesemessones 5
2.3 CITY STRATEGIC PLAN......cevrririetisiasissssinnenrsresesessissssssnssesssessmscsosassessenssssessene 5
2.4 REVISIONS TO MANUAL ......cocctiiriimeceerenesesmreinisiseseseesssssmsassssssorsesmsnssasssssesenesens 5
3.0 WAGE AND HOUR POLICIES -
3.1 INTRODUCTION.....ccocistirireriasssnrmrncersrararenmsissinisssssssasssssscsresssesassenesnsseresssssessarn 6
3.2 PAY PERIOD ....oeeviriniristisisisessssiessessstressresasserorssssssssessssssssessssss sosessons seossessssones 6
3.3 PAYCHECK DEDUCTIONS ....c.coueiiaresnsrsrnsnsernnssesessossasesmessarsasassasanronsssssssossesessens 6
3.4 DIRECT DEPOSIT ....cvvvererserirenermenserinessersnisieninssssssessosesssssssmnssssssessassssssesesesenea. 6
3.5 RECORDING TIME......ccovsusrsmmmssnicrreresssesrarsasacscessorsssnsseseensnsseserssosssnsssnssnessssssssons 6
3.6 TRAVEL TIME PAY ..ocooiiiccrciarisisminsnesmsranssesmssissssssssseesencenssssnsnssesesssssssonssesesesons 6
3.7 OVERTIME......coiiiivmiieiiiitisisinsssensoereressssssssssesenserssssssssnsesesssessossssasssoses sessssssns 6
3.8 LONGEVITY PAY ....cimveiiniieoriimieinissssissrsresiesnerssesrssssessossonsorsssansassarsssesassosseseseneses 7
3.9 CERTIFICATION PAY .....cucmussammssisamseiossssssiionssonss s aisiossasismanmmsssmertmmssrns 7
3.10  ATTENDANCE POLICY ....ccivummrerrorssarsarurmarimsssssseesserssssssnsessenessassssmsssssssassassssssens 7
3.11  JOB ABANDONMENT ....cvcirvrerssisirmrmrersnsseressnsiimsssssssssesessersssnssnrerassessssenssereoesoneas 7
312 TRAVEL EXPENSES .....coucuiiitiiisenssscitnionrmnasissessnoscsssarsassssssssnsesseseressasassessonsosssans 7
313 GIFTS et see s ssasse s s serere bt s s s s s s st s sen o nemet sens e 8
3.14  OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT......oevcmesirnnenininersssnnssssessseasssasessessesesssesssmsssnsssesssenses 8
3.15 USE OF CITY CREDIT CARDS ......ccccreererermmisiimiassisesnsseresstrosessessesessssssesessssssssens 8
3.16 REST AND MEAL PERIODS ....cvvvrtriiucsmevnisercssisnensnssesersesessssssnssssussessessseasessesns 8
4.0 BENEFITS , 9
4.1 REGULAR FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES .......ccocererrmvermsseisscnssreressasssssnseressssessasssssesenens 9
4.2 REGULAR PART-TIME EMPLOYEES.......covcoverurereeemssssseersonesassesrsassssesnssesssesssssosesons 9
4.3 TEMPORARY EMPLOYEES......c.oovrvceruemensrrermrisnnsisnsssessassessenssesessssrsossorsssionssmsesssens 9
4.4 EXEMPT EMPLOYEES ........ccosiuicmmmiasioriaresienenissssseressessssssn esasssrassasnessassmossossassoons 9
4.5  HEALTH INSURANCE ........ocvuiinirertirimsersansesesasassssssasesssmcsssssssssensaesssns sesesssoneores 9
4.6 LIFE INSURANCE......ccoiveririretisismsmsmrnsisse s nsnssisssassssessssessenssnsesarsesessssossosesssnss 10
4.7 DENTAL AND VISION CARE INSURANCE ......ccuiuecermsreesseersassssosorsassrscesosesssesesssmn 10

Page 1 Revised 2/24/2022



4.9 CONTINUING EDUCATION POLICY AND TUTTION ASSISTANCE .....ecvovveerveriosns 10
410 HOLIDAY PAY .....coiiireiienrcsiarinmiurnsesiaresrsssssssnsissssnssssessssases sevassasssossssmesssesseses 11
4,11 VACATION POLICY ...cviuieirenrcrniunensnsacsentassonimstosssnssserss smerossesssrsssssssssss ssrsessas 11
Ad2 SICKPAY ceeerettitiaiessessmssessiaescor svasenssnsstastoresssasstssesessesmsssesesssessssssssssesssons 12
4.13 REQUESTING LEAVES OF ABSENCE ......ccocvvviiararissssionsocesovsssnssessssesessresesnses 13
4.14 FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE OF ABSENCE ......ccvvereerreirnssesresecsnesssnrssessessossones 13
4.15  MILITARY LEAVE [USERRAL....cct0rmrreceresernrsessissssoscrsesnsrerases sossssssmssesessesessensses 15
4.16  JURY DUTY AND WITNESS LEAVE.....ccrvermiuaiereerermmvesrersssmseesasseserssssssssesnssensssns 15
4.17 VOTING LEAVE - Iowa Code § 49,109 ........ecovuvrremrvinnnsnerssecassersssssessessasessesssnne 15
4.18  BEREAVEMENT LEAVE .....ccveuvevrrermcmsensssvriiniasiasesssssssesessessesasssssssorsssssssssssssseres 15
4.19 WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE AND DISABILITY LEAVE........ovvvivien. 16
420 COBRA (.oievereeiisisirieies et s snrnesaeseatestesesnostsserssrarosesmessersressasssssensessesneseensens 16
421 A57B PlaN.....oiiiviiiioriinsisnnsensinsiaaiasinssestesiassessesesssrssesssnsssssmaseserasssssssessessensomes 16
5.0 HIRING AND ORIENYATION POLICIES 16
5.1 EEO STATEMENT AND NON-HARASSMENT POLICY .....covveeveveresnerssensssssnssesesesseses 16
5.2 DISABILITY ACCOMMODATION ......ccureemrseruesismisisissasssensersasessererserasssessesssessses 18
5.3 RELIGIOUS ACCOMMODATION.......ccieerrurmermenriiirsescrsnessenssesesssssonssssos sossesesssnes 18
5.4  POSTING OF OPENINGS ...coiuisuceumcrsenmornserormsreressesassmcsessssnsesscsrasassossesssssseesoresese 19
5.5 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST ...cvicrrerneserrrrsrseasaarassorersessssssnssossessessssnsessosssssnssnesssssson 19
5.6 EMPLOYMENT OF RELATIVES AND FRIENDS .......ccovemvereeeervarresrsossssossssssssssesases 19
5.7 JOB DESCRIPTIONS ....covuiaisevursseossecseaerserserserssnssmesessasasesrssesasnerossssssssseessses sesas 19
5.8 NEW EMPLOYEES AND PROBATION PERIODS ..ivueecrrerurereereessreneseesssssssrsssesssonesses 19
5.9  TRAINING PROGRAM......c.eotieeisnienersastesiasesnssssassinaressnsessmsssssessssmssssasasssssesssses 20
5.10 PROOF OF CITIZENSHIP AND RIGHT TO WORK ..o.eeerererrerresrerorsoreessessesssesesnes 20
5.1 PERSONAL DATA CHANGES . .1 c0eesrermvmrermrrersesasenimesrsrarssssseenssessersessesssssssessesens 20
6.0 PERFORMANCE, DISCIPLINE, LAYOFF, AND TERMINATION........ccccornenrsrsnns 20
6.1 PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT ....evverereeureirarmensnsionesesnssssessrossnssssssssssssssassnsaes 20
6.2 PROMOTIONS.....ceiiuieiereissnensresmintsssinsassesessssssssans sosssssesssssesessesnssessmsnssesessses 20
6.3 PAY RAISES....oceeeeiirissmisnsnisenennssenierssnnsserress oeesassssssasssessssnsssensransssensens sorensee 20
6.4 TRANSFER.......coieieriisiiesnsiessissiennesissestestissesesesncssessasesasseesessesasessessssssressesessene 20
6.5 WORKFORCE REDUCTIONS (LAYOFFS) .cueciueraiirmrcceseresersessesrsessossssoresssssssonsoseses 21
6.6 STANDARDS OF CONDUCT ..ivvvrerrerrrcoresormrmissinsssssssssesessaressnssensssssssesessrssenssesessen 21

Page 2 Revised 2/24/2022



6.7 CRIMINAL ACTIVITY; ARRESTS ...cvecrirnccerensnmranisesimsnsssreressenssessessessssssssssarannas 22

6.8 DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY ....icsismeiimisercraanaseassomnesnsiserssorsressnsssssessessosnrassnns 22
6.9  DISCIPLINARY PROCESS.......ocoruersisuinsurirmesmmcsmsarsaressossiosesassanosssesssessessssasssasasso 23
6.10 PROBLEM SOLVING PROCEDURE .....cueetrerienererssrsusirssesmssmsersissesssssserasssnssssssnses 23
6.11 REPORTING AND DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS ....civvrrrreniinrecrsrormsreessmoresrsssesersssesnns 23
6.12  EXIT INTERVIEW....coiiitisaiiioreneensiienssirsnnrmnnesassmastasatisresosensssssssnsntsavns sossssnansns 24
6.13 POST-EMPLOYMENT REFERENCE POLICY .......covvvrerrecreeraisonssesessensosassesssnssssssenes 24
7.0 GENERAL POLICIES... 24
7.1 DRIVING RECORD ...cvirmericrisiisissisrerisssansssersarsnssessersisssoseressesessesesssssssassssnsnessane 24
7.2 USE OF CITY VEHICLES .......cceoimieiiresrisinmsnneniressssarsresnsinsanisnisistassessessmoseonesseonne 24
7.3 PERSONNEL AND MEDICAL RECORDS....c.coureirerrermveecrerersnsuonsnesesnesssssarsssensrnsarses 25
7.4 EMPLOYEE PRIVACY AND RIGHT TO INSPECT ....ccovveierisereevsescsssensasssssessessnssenns 25
7.5 VOICEMAIL, EMAIL AND INTERNET POLICY .....coivviereriverieniearnasessessecsssssssrassasrenee 25
7.6 SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY ....ovuiivisneresseossniressernrssnentssnsseseraesessessersassassnssnsssesensseane 26
7.7  EMPLOYEE SUGGESTIONS .....occccesisssisnmrenisinismrcessiesimsssssssssssosasensssessenssrsnssaners 27
7.8 CITY BULLETIN BOARDS......ccouvuermisiississssessessrnsresasssssersinssssenssassensoresssenssnssesneaes 27
7.3 NON-SOLICITATION POLICY ...cooruiicerrerrrsrmrnssesssesenroreniserassssssssasssssonmossaronssensns 27
7.10 PERSONAL APPEARANCE AND DRESS CODE....cc.ovvvrrenrreerirrereemrsressessaressassosnans 27
7.11  PAYROLL ADVANCES AND LOANS .....ccccrcrnreermmirrieninisssmsrerseesesssersessansenressarsrenss 27
7.12  TELEPHONE USE ......ciniveieeceimienincecsininnnisnssssssesserasassssessssssssssesrsssosssrsnoseasses 27
7.13  MAIL USE/ MAIL DELIVERY ....cccvuururemnrnssseersasssvsrermsesassssniarssosnsssssensessansons sossesns 28
7.14  OFF-DUTY USE OF CITY PROPERTY OR PREMISES.........c.ccoririeinmiscnsaessernarsonnene 28
715 SECURITY chevuvrvtiviarmsiamissoneisesesessesssssssssnssnsssssssesrarvassensessssntosssssmnas sosasarasens 28
7.16 COMPUTER SECURITY AND COPYING OF SOFTWARE.........c.ocvvsmerrereosearsoncssoness 28
7.17  THIRD PARTY DISCLOSURES ......cevverrurrensiereenrsnacsaransssosorseonsessassassnresserssesesss 28
7.18 RECYCLING AND ENERGY POLICY ....ocovvvervenrmnieniensueseiroseesmsmssererassnssenssssresssssane 29
7.19 MANDATORY COOPERATION IN WORKPLACE INVESTIGATIONS ..v.vvvvesecvenreennne 29

7.20 RESIDENCY REQUIREMENTS .........cominvirmerenensnssensse e seessssssossessossssnmsesesereseerees 30

8.0 SAFETY AND LOSS PREVENTION 30
8.1 GENERAL SAFETY POLICY ......cciieivimmerscansaonsaissiersrnsnserersasecsmsesressessersensssssmsnenne 30
8.2 NON-SMOKING POLICY ....ccoeiiarvinismsnisenssesssansnsrnsrerasimssestasssssnsosersssssassnesns sesseane 30
8.3  POLICY AGAINST VIOLENCE .....cccovsiirrminsinssesmsseenmsestassiosrerssssssssssssssassescsmsease 29

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT & REVIEW OF EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK ......... awndl

Page 3 Revised 2/24/2022



1.0 WELCOME

1.1  WELCOME LETTER

Welcome! You have just joined a dedicated team! We hope that your employment
with the City of Cresco will be rewarding and challenging. We take pride in our
employees as well as the services we all provide to the residents.

Please take the time now to read this employee handbook carefully. Sign the
acknowledgment at the end to show that you have read, understood, and agree to the
contents of this handbook, which sets out the basic rules and guidelines concerning
your employment and submit it to the City Clerk. This handbook supersedes any
previously issued handbooks or policy statements dealing with the subjects discussed
herein. The City reserves the right to interpret, modify, or supplement the provisions
of this handbook at any time.

All City employees are covered by this handbook, except:

1, Elected officials;

2. Members of City boards and commissions;

3. Persons appointed to serve without compensation; and
4. Employees hired on a contractual basis,

Employees covered under a collective bargaining unit are also covered under this
employee handbook. However, if a discrepancy occurs then the collective bargaining
agreement will supersede this employee handbook.

This Handbook is not a contract and does not create an express or implied guarantee
of any specific term of employment.

Please understand that no employee handbook can address every situation in the work
place. If you ever have questions about your employment, you are encouraged to ask.
If you have any difficuity reading or understanding any of the provisions of this
handbook, please contact the City Clerk. Likewise, if you have any suggestions related
to City policies or procedures, please let us know.

We wish you success in your employment here at the City of Cresco!
All the best,
City of Cresco

Page 4 Revised 2/24/2022



L2 AT-WILL EMPLOYMENT

Your employment with the City is on an “at-will” basis. This means your employment may be terminated
at any time, with or without notice and with or without cause, Likewise, we respect your right to leave
the Gity at any time, with or without notice and with or without cause.

Nothing in the employee handbook or any other City document should be understood as creating
guaranteed or continued employment, a right to termination only “for cause,” or of any other guarantee
of continued benefits or employment.

2.0 INTRODUCTORY LANGUAGE AND POLICIES
2.1 MISSION STATEMENT

Our mission is to serve the people of Cresco honestly and effectively. Through a variety of services, we
strive to provide the quality of life desired by the community. The members of our City organization
insist that services are provided with the highest level of respect, responsiveness and honesty to the
people of Cresco. The resuilt is a financially sound clty government and citizens receiving services and
value for their tax dollars.

2.2 ETHICS CODE

The City of Cresca will conduct its business honestly and ethically wherever operations are maintained.
We strive to Improve the quality of our services and operations and will maintain a reputation for
honesty, fairness, respect, responsibility, integrity, trust, and sound judgment. All of our employees and
elected officials are expected to adhere to high standards of business and personal integrity as a
representation of our business practices,

We expect that officials and employees will not aliow personal interests to conflict with the interests of
the City, its dients, or affiliates, nor will they misrepresent the City or use their City contacts to advance
private or personal interests. Sensitive information about our City or operations, or that of our citizens
i5 10 be treated with discretion and only be disseminated on a need-to-know basis.

Violation of the Code of Ethics can result in discipline, up to and Indluding termination of employment,
The degree of discipline imposed may be influenced by voluntary disclosure of any ethical violation and
whether or not the violator cooperated in any subsequent investigation.

2.3 CITY STRATEGIC PLAN

The City of Cresco Strategic Planning Report, which was prepared and adopted by the Mayor and City
Coungil, is a blueprint for the future growth and development of this community. This is a
comprehensive effort to learn what the residents of Cresco want for the future of their community. It
is our hope and expectation that the completion of the goals outlined and established in this plan will
enhance the overall quality of life in our community. Please feel free to go to the City of Cresco

website to read the Strategic Planning Report at http://www.cityofcresco.com/mission-strategic.html,
2.4 REVISIONS TO MANUAL

This employee handbook is our attempt to keep you informed of the terms and conditions of your
employment, including City policies and procedures. The handbook is not a contract, The City reserves
the right to revise, add, or delete from this handbook as it determines to be in its best interest, When
changes are made to the policies and guidelines contained herein, we will try to communicate them in
a timely fashion, typically in a written supplement to the handbook or in a posting on City bulletin
boards.

Page 5 Revised 2/24/2022



3.0 WAGE AND HOUR POLICIES
3.1 INTRODUCTION

If you have any questions about your compensation, including matters such as paid time off, overtime,
benefits, or paycheck deductions, please speak with your supervisor or the City Clerk.

3.2 PAY PERIOD

The standard pay period is bi-weeldy for all empioyees. The workweek begins at 12:00 AM Saturday
and ends at 11:59 PM Friday. Paychecks are distributed on the Friday following the end of the pay
period. Should any pay day fall on a holiday, you will be paid on the preceding workday.

3.3 PAYCHECK DEDUCTIONS

The City is required by federal and state law to make certain deductions from your paycheck. This
indludes federal income tax, state income tax, and FICA contributions (Social Security and Medicare) as
well as any other deduction required under state or federal law such as IPERS and gamishments. The
amount of your tax deductions will depend on your earnings and the number of exemptions you list on
your W-4 Form. Other voluntary deductions may also be withheld from your paycheck. Any questions
about your paycheck should be directed to the City Clerk,

3.4 DIRECT DEPOSIT

We require all new employees to enroll in direct deposit. You will receive a paystub, a written explanation
of your deductions and a confirmation of your deposit on paydays in lieu of a check.

3.5 RECORDING TIME

Federal and state laws require us to keep accurate records of hours worked by nonexempt (hourly)
employees. Every nonexempt employee of the City is required to enter his or her hours worked
accurately, including all lunch periods.  Employees are required to notify the City of any pay
discrepandes, unrecorded or errors in recording work hours, or any meals missed involuntarily,

Piease be sure to indicate your days off. All time sheets must be signed by the employee and supervisor.
Time cards are to be turned in to City Hall on Monday morning after the pay period ends.

Falsification of time records or recording time for another employee may result in discipline, up to and
including termination of employment. '

3.6 TRAVEL TIME PAY

Nonexempt employees required to travel to a distant work piace are paid travel time in addition to time
worked, Travel hours are “hours worked” for the purposes of calculating overtime.

3.7 OVERTIME

If you are a nonexempt employee, you may qualify for overtime pay. All overtime must be approved by
your supervisor. At certain times the City may require you to work overtime, We will attempt to give as
much notice as possible in this instance,

However, advance notice may not always be possible. Failure to work overtime when requested or
working unauthorized overtime may result in discipline, up to and incdluding discharge.

Overtime pay or compensatory (“comp”) time off will be paid for any hours worked in excess of 40
hours in a workweek (or B0 hours in a two-week pay pericd for palice), The workweek begins at 12:00
AM Saturday and ends at 11:59 PM Friday. Overtime pay shall be calculated as one and one-half an
employee’s regular rate of pay. Comp time off shall be calculated at one and one-half comp time hours

Page 6 Revised 2/24/2022



for each hour of overtime worked. The employee will determing, with Department Head input, whether
the employee shali earn overtime pay or comp time. There shall be no more than 100 hours comp time
off accumulated at one time unless the Employer causes more. Employees may accrue no more than
100 hours each January 1% — December 31% based on actual hours worked disregarding the pay date.
No more than 80 hours of comp time shall be carried over to the next calendar year. Any excess will be
paid out by January 15% of the foliowing calendar year.

Holidays, sick Jeave, comp time off, and vacation will count as hours worked for computing overtime.

Any employee called to work outside of his/her regularly scheduled shift shall be paid for a minimum of
2 hours at the appropriate rate of pay. Public Works employees scheduled to work on Saturday, Sunday,
or a holiday shall be paid for hours worked with a minimum of 6 hours at the appropriate rate,

3.8 LONGEVITY PAY

Regular full-time employees shall be compensated for their continuous years of service after 5
consecutive years. The rate will be set in the Local 1068 Union Contract with the City of Cresco. Contact
the City Clerk for the current rates.

3.9 CERTIFICATION PAY

Water or Wastewater employees who obtain and maintain State certifications shall be eligible for
additional certification pay. The rate will be set in the Local 1068 Union Contract with the City of Cresco.
Contact the City Clerk for the current rates. Employees receiving certification pay will be required to
participate in water/sewer department weekend coverage rotations. Water and Wastewater personnel
must obtain Grade 1 Certification for both the Water and Wastewater certifications within 5 years from
the date the employee was hired into the position.

3.10 ATTENDANCE POLICY

If you know ahead of time that you will be absent or late, provide reasonable advance notice to your
supervisor. Employees may be required to provide documentation of any medical or other excuse for
being absent or iate.

The City reserves the right to apply unused vacation, sick time, or other-paid time off to unauthorized
absences. Absences resulting from approved leave, vacation, or legal requirements are exceptions to
the policy.

3.11 JOB ABANDONMENT

If an employee fails to show up for work or call in with an acceptable reason for the absence for a

period of three consecutive days, he or she will be considered to have abandoned his or her job and
voluntarily resigned from the City.

3.12 TRAVEL EXPENSES

Travel expenses are the reasonable and necessary expenses Incurred by employees when traveling on
approved City business trips. City travel is limited to business activities for which other means of
communication are inadequate and for which prior approval by the employee’s supervisor has been
received.

The following expenses for City-approved meetings, trainings, and conventions will be considered for
reimbursement (receipts are required to be submitted):

a) Registration fees
b) Reasonable meal expenses (up to $25.00) with detalled receipt

€) Reasonable lodging expenses
Page 7 Revised 2/24/2022



d) Mileage for personal vehicle at the current mileage allowance set by the IRS or gas expenses
for a City-owned vehide

Personal Vehicles

Employees travelling on City business are encouraged to use City vehicles; use of a personal vehicle
must be approved in advance. In this case, the employee must maintain insurance coverage as required
by law. Use of personal vehicle will be reimbursed at the standard IRS business mileage rate.

Travel between the employee’s home and primary place of work is not considered to be business travel.

Employee Reporting

Employees are to report their approved expenses on the standard Expense Report Form and must
include a description of the expense, its business purpose, date, place, and the participants, Receipts
are required for all expenses except mileage,

3.13 GIFTS

Under no circumstances shouid an employee give or offer a customer anything to influence a favorable
Customer action. Also, employees may not accept any gift from denors, vendors or contractors that
could directly or indirectly financially benefit the employee or the employee’s immediate family. If you
are offered a gift you should refuse the gift upon delivery and if you are not able to refuse, immediatety
notify Human Resources about the gift so they can arrange the gift to be donated to an appropriate
organization. If there are any questions about whether the gift is legal or should be rejected please
refer to Appendix A, Chapter 68B.22 of Code of Iowa, Gifts Accepted or Received.

3.14 OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT

While under employment with the City, no employee shall engage in outside employment other than
with the City if it is proven to impede or prevent the employee from performing their duties with the
City. In regards to future employment, all offers outside of City employment must be reported
immediately to the supervisor and it will be the supervisor's discretion to decide if the offered
employment will impede or prevent the empioyee in the performance of their duties with the City.

3.15 USE OF CITY CREDIT CARDS

Every employee in the possession of a City credit card will adhere to the strictest guidelines of
responsibility for the proper protection and use of that card. All sales receipts generated by use of the
City credit card must be turned in immediately to the Accounts Payable Department. City credit cards
are not to be used for personal reasons. Use of the City credit card Is restricted to approved business-
related expenses.

Any unauthorized purchases made with a City credit card will be the cardholder’s responsibifity. Any
such purchase will be reimbursed to the City by the employee within 10 days.

Lost or stolen City cards must be reported immediately to your supervisor or manager. Failure to follow
this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and induding discharge.

3.16 REST AND MEAL PERIODS

The City strives to provide a safe and healthy work envirohment and complies with all federal and state
regulations regarding rest and meal periods. Please check with your supervisor regarding procedures
and schedules for rest and meal breaks. Employees’ work schedules provide for a 15-minute rest period
during each 4-hour shift. The rest period is a privilege offered for mental and physical refreshment and

improved efficiency. This Is not to be cumulative and there will be no extra compensation if missed.
Page 8 Revised 2/24/2022



The City requests that employees accurately observe and record meal periods, An uninterrupted unpaid
lunch period of no less than one-half hour and no more than one hour will be required if the employee
is scheduled for 6 hours or more of work. Employees working in Police operations shall have a paid
lunch period, of no more than one hour, included as part of their regular shift.

After 4 hours of overtime worked, an employee may take an unpaid meal break of up to one hour. The
City will reimburse the reasonable cost of the meal if a receipt is submitted. The maximum
reimbursement will be $25.00 and is effective for all Union and Non-Unlon employees,

4.0 BENEFITS
4.1 REGULAR FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES

A regufar full-time employee is an employee who has completed his or her probation period and is
regularly scheduled to work 40 hours per week or, for police, B0 hours in a two-week pay period. Unless
stated otherwise, all the benefits provided to employees are for regular full-time employees only. This
includes vacation, holiday pay, health insurance, dental insurance, vision insurance, life insurance,
AFLAC, Fitness Center dues, flexible spending account, IPERS and 4578 retirement and other benefits,

4.2 REGULAR PART-TIME EMPLOYEES

Any employee who works less than 40 hours per week is considered a regular part-time employee unless
they are classified as a temporary part-time employee. Part-time employees are not eligible for City
benefits unless specified otherwise in this handbook or in the benefit plan summaries,

4.3 TEMPORARY EMPLOYEES

Temporary employees are hired for a specific period or spexific work project. The City reserves the right
to extend the duration of temporary employment where necessary. Temporary employees are not
eligible for employee benefits unless specified otherwise in this handbook or in the benefit plan
summaries,

4.4 EXEMPT EMPLOYEES

If you are classified as an exempt employee at the time of your hiring, you are not eligible for overtime
pay as otherwise required by federal, state, or local laws. If you have a question regarding whether you
are an exempt or nonexempt employee, contact your supervisor for darification.

4.5 HEALTH INSURANCE

The City provides its regular full-time employees the opportunity to participate in a group health
insurance program, Medical plan benefits for eligible employees (and their dependents) are described
in detail in the Summary Plan Description (SPD) prepared by the insurance carrier. These benefits may
be canceled or changed at the discretion of the City, unless otherwise required by iaw. '

The City’s contribution toward the health insurance premium is set by the City Council and is subject to
review and change annually.

If you enroll, insurance coverage will be effective on the first day of the first full month following the
employment date. Employer-paid insurance coverage will end on the last day of the month in which
employment is terminated,

Health benefits during Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) leaves are maintained by the City on the
same terms as if the employee continued to work. Please contact the City Clerk for clarification. In such
circumstances, arrangements must be made by eligible emplaoyees to pay their share of the health

Page 9 Revised 2/24/2022



insurance premium on a monthly basis to maintain insurance coverage. Please contact the City Clerk to
determine the amount of your contribution. The City’s obligation to maintain health benefits stops when:

® An employee informs the City of an intent not to return to work at the end of the leave period; or
® An employee fails to return to work when the FMLA entitlement is exhausted; or

¢ An employee’s premium contribution is past due.

The City will be entitled to recover premiums paid to maintain health insurance coverage from an
employee who fails to return to work from leave.

Please understand that plan eligibility does not necessarily mean coverage for all medical treatments or
procedures. In addition, under changed circumstances you may be responsible for contributing to the
cost of increased premiums. This benefit, as well as other benefits, may be canceled or changed at the
discretion of the City, unless otherwise required by law,

If you or a dependent become ineligible for benefits due to a change in work hours or through a life
event or you leave employment with us, you may have the right to continue your medical benefits under
the Consolidated Omnibus Benefits Reconciliation Act (COBRA). The City will mail you information about
your COBRA rights.

Continuation Coverage under Iowa Code Chapter 509A

Employees who retire from City employment before age 65 are eligible to continue in the City’s group
health insurance pfan up to age 65. Coverage must be continuous and the retired employee must pay
the full cost of the premium. For purposes of this section, a retired employee is one who has applied
for and is receiving a retirement allowance from IPERS.

4.6 LIFE INSURANCE

All regular full-time employees are provided with life Insurance by the City effective on the first day of
the first full month following the employment date. You will be required to notify the benefits
administrator of your intended beneficiary. Refer to the Summary Plan Description (SPD) for details
about the benefit,

4.7 DENTAL AND VISION CARE INSURANCE

All regular full-ime employees may enroll in the dental andfor vision care plan within 30 days of hire.
The City does not contribute to this benefit therefore 100% of the premium will be withheld from your
paycheck. Benefits are described in detail in the Summary Plan Description (SPD).

4.8 PENSION PLAN

All regular full-time employees are required to participate in the pension plan called IPERS. After a
specified period of employment, this plan provides you with a vested interest related to your length of
employment. The City’s contribution on your behalf to the plan and your personal contribution rates
are set by IPERS in July of each year. Please refer to the Summary Plan Description (SPD) provided by
the benefits administrator for spedifics or contact the City Clerk for more information,

4.9 CONTINUING EDUCATION POLICY AND TUITION ASSISTANCE

We believe In the continuing education of our employees. If the City sends you to a dass or training
program during normal working hours related to your employment and you are a nonexempt employee,
you will be paid your regular rate of pay for that time. If you are interested in attending an outside class
and having the City pay for your attendance, you are required to provide advance written notice
indicating a description of the dass, induding the subject matter, length, and cost. Depending on the
type of training, the City may reimburse some or all of the fees, including materials expenses, meals,
Page 10 Revised 2/24/2022



and transportation. If your supervisor approves of your attendance at a non-sponsored dass, you will
be reimbursed once you have attended and paid for the class.

4.10 HOLIDAY PAY
The City of Cresco offers the following paid holidays each year:

+ New Year's Eve Day Veteran's Day

* New Year's Day Thanksgiving Day

¢ Memorial Day Friday after Thanksgiving
¢ Independence Day Christmas Eve Day

+ Labor Day Christmas Day

e Good Friday Afterncon

When a City holiday falls on a Saturday, it will be observed the preceding Friday. Holldays falling on a
Sunday will be observed the following Monday.

The City observes the right to close on another day or grant comp time off instead of dosing Its offices.

Holiday pay for full-time employees is computed at the straight time rate of elght hours (except Good
Friday is four hours). If an employee works on any of the holidays listed above, they shall be paid time
and one-half for all hours worked, in addition to the eight hours of holiday pay.

If an employee works on Easter Day he/she shall be paid time and one haif for all hours worked,
4.11 VACATION POLICY

Eligibility and Allowances. All employees hired before July 1, 2015 shall be entitled to a pald
vacation in accordance with the following schedule;

Length Vacation Length Vacation

of Service Allowance of Service Allowance

After 1 year 48 hours After 10 years 144 hours

After 2 years 88 hours After 12 years 152 hours

After 3 years 96 hours After 14 years 160 hours

After 5 years 104 hours After 16 years 184 hours

After 7 years 120 hours After 18 years 192 hours

After 9 years 136 hours After 20 years 200 hours

All employees hired after July 1, 2015 shall be entitled to a paid vacation with the following schedule:

Length Vacation Length Vacation
of Service Allowance of Service Allowance
After 6 months 40 hours

After 1 year 40 hours After 10 years 120 hours
After 2 years 88 hours After 15 years 144 hours
After 5 years 104 hours After 20 years 160 hours

Page 11 Revised 2/24/2022



Employment anniversary dates shall be used in determining years of employment,

Choice of Vacation Period. If the nature of the work makes it necessary to limit the number of
employees on vacation at the same time, the employee with the greater seniority shall be given his/her
choice of vacation period in the event of any conflict over vacation periods. However, these vacation
times shall not preempt any vacation that had 30 days or more approval. Vacation requested and
approved 30 days or more in advance shall have priority over any other vacation requests, with the
exception of already scheduled vacations. Vacations requested and approved less than 30 days in
advance shall be granted by seniority; however, these vacation times shall not preempt any vacations
that had 30 days or more approval.

Vacations shall be taken in increments of 30 minutes or more. Vacations of longer than 14 consecutive
days shall be subject to the approval of the Supervisor.

Department Heads may carry over up to 120 hours of vacation. AH others may carry over up to 80
hours of vacation,

Vacation Rights in Case of Separation. Upon separation, employees will be paid out for ali accrued
and unused vacation. Accrued vacation benefits for deceased employees shall be paid to the employee’s

estate.
4.12 SICK PAY

Sick leave shall apply to a pericd in which the employee is incapacitated and absent from the
performance of the employee’s duties by sickness, injury, for medical, surgical or optical treatment, or
where by reason of the employee’s exposure to contagious disease, the employee’s presence at the
employee’s post of duty would jeopardize the health of others. Disabilities caused by or contributed to
by pregnancy and recovery thereof shall be covered by sick leave. After the second day of sick leave,
the Employer may request written verification from the attending doctor. An employee may use 48
hours of his or her accumulated sick leave for the lliness of the employee’s spouse, child or parent.

Accumulation and Bank, Employees shall be eligible for sick ieave from their date of hire. Employees
shall accrue 8 hours of sick leave for each month of service, Sick leave shall be eamed by an employee
for any month in which the employee is compensated for 10 or more days of work. Employees may
accumulate sick leave up to a maximum of 1008 hours.

Unused Days

A. A lump sum shall be paid to an employee equal to 20% of the cash value of the
accumulated sick leave when they retire. Retirement is defined as eligibility for
benefits under a State of Iowa public employees retirement plan {IPERS).

In lieu of the above, upon retirement, the employee shall have the option to apply
unused sick keave to pay the health insurance premiums for the retiree.

B. In the event of death, payment equal to 20% of the cash value of the accumulated
sick leave is to be made to the estate of the employee.

C. The amount of payment for all unused sick leave is to be calculated at the employee’s
rate of pay in effect on the payday immediately preceding the employee’s separation.

D. The accumulated sick leave will not be paid out for any voluntary or involuntary
resignation or termination of employment except for retirement.

Scheduled Sick Leave. An employee may return to work and perform light duty work if deared by
his/her physician. Give your supervisor as much advance notice as possible if you are going to take sick
time off. There may be occasions, such as sudden illness, when you cannot notify your supervisor in

Page 12 Revised 2/24/2022



advance. In those situations, you must inform your supervisor of YOur circumstances as soon as possible.
You may also be requested to provide a certificate of ifiness to YOUur supervisor.

You may use sick leave benefits for the purpose of dental or doctor visits as well as up to 48 hours to
care for immediate family members who are sick.

4.13 REQUESTING LEAVES OF ABSENCE

A leave of absence (leave) is defined as an unpaid approved absence from work for a specified period
of time for medical, parental, military, or other approved reasons. If an employee finds that he she must
be out of work for more than three days, he or she should contact the City Clerk department to _
determine if a teave of absence may be necessary.

Leaves of absence will start on the date of request or date of need. While on leave, an employee must
contact the City Clerk at least every 30 days. Failure to contact the City Clerk upon request may result
in voluntary termination of employment. Failure to return to work upon the expiration of the leave or
refusing an offer of reinstatement for which the employee is qualified will also result in voluntary
termination of employment.

Required Documentation

All requests for a ieave of absence must be made on a Leave of Absence Request Form for the particular
leave (FMLA, disability accommodation, military, pregnancy, other medical leave, personal leave, etc.)
and submitted to the immediate supervisor. An employee must provide 30 days’ advance notice when
the need for the leave of absence is foreseeable; for instance, if medical treatments or other events are
planned or known in advance, If the leave of absence is not foreseeabie, the employee must provide
notice to his or her immediate supervisor as soon as possible. Medical certifications andfor other
documentation supporting the need for the leave may be required.

Job Benefits

For leaves other than approved FMLA leaves, the City of Cresco will pay its portion of the cost of the
employee’s benefits including health, and life insurance benefits white an employee is on leave for the
end of the monthly billing cyde at which time a COBRA notification will be issued. Family and Medical
Leave Act (FMLA) leaves of absence allow for up to 12 weeks of group health insurance continuation
coverage in the same manner as if the employee continued to work. The employee must continue to
pay his or her portion of the benefits which may be made by payroll deductions (when applicable) or
by check which must be submitted to the City Clerk department each pay period unless other
arrangements have been made. If the employee fails to pay his or her portion of the benefits for more
than 30 days, the employee’s coverage(s) will be terminated and the employee will be offered COBRA
to continue benefits coverage.

Before granting Unpaid Leave of Absence, employees may be required to use any accrued vacation,
comp time or sick time,

No benefits will be accrued while an employee is on leave. Except as otherwise provided by law, time
spent on a leave of absence, except for military reserve duty, will not be counted as time employed in
determining an employee’s eligibility for benefits that accrue on the basis of length of employment.

Return to Work

Upon return to work, the employee may be required to take a fitness for duty exam or otherwise provide
medical clearance,

4.14 FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE OF ABSENCE

The City complles with the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA), as amended.
Page 13 Revised 2/24/2022



The FMLA requires covered employers to provide up to 12 weeks of unpaid, benefits and job-protected
leave to eligible employees for the following reasons:

« For incapacity due to pregnancy, prenatal medical care, or child birth;

¢ To care for the employee’s child after birth, or placement for adoption or foster care;

+ To care for the employee’s spouse, son or daughter, parent, or in certain circumstances care for
those in nontraditional family arrangements, who has a serious health condition; or

* Foraserious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the employee’s job

Military Family Leave Entitlements

Eligible employees with a spouse, son, daughter, or parent on active duty or call to covered active duty
status may use their 12-week leave entitlement to address certain qualifying exigencies. Qualifying
exigencies may Include attending certain military events, arranging for alternative childcare, addressing
certain financial and legal arrangements, attending certain counseling sessions, and attending post-
deployment reintegration briefings.

FMLA also includes a spectal leave entitiement that permits eligible employees to take up to 26 weeks
of leave to care for a covered service member during a single 12-month period. A covered service
member is: 1) a current member of the Armed Forces, incdluding a member of the National Guard or
Reserves, who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation or therapy, is otherwise on the temporary
disability retired list for a serious injury or iliness*; or 2) a veteran who was discharged or released
under conditions other than dishonorable at any time during the five-year period prior to the first date
the eligible employee takes FMLA leave to care for the covered veteran, and who Is undergeing medical
treatment, recuperation, or therapy for a serious injury or iliness.

*The FMLA definition of “serious injury or iliness” for current service members and veterans is distinct
from the FMLA deflnition of “serious health condition.”

During FMLA leave, the City will maintain the employee’s group health coverage on the same terms as
if the employee had continued to work. Upon return from FMLA leave, most employees will be restored
to their original or equivalent positions with equivalent pay, benefits, and other employment terms.

Use of FMLA ieave cannot result In the loss of any employment benefit that accrued prior to the start of
an employee’s [eave.

Eligibility Requirements for FMLA Leave

Employees are eligible If they have worked for a covered employer for at least one year, for 1,250 hours
over the previous 12 months, and if at least 50 employees are employed by the City within 75 miles,

Definition of Serious Health Condition

A serious health condition is an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition that involves
either an overnight stay in a medical care fadility, or continuing treatment by a health care provider for
a condition that either prevents the empioyee from performing the functions of the employee’s job, or
prevents the qualified family member from participating in school or other daily activities.

Subject to certain conditions, the continuing treatment requirement may be met by a period of incapacity
of more than three consecutive calendar days combined with at least two visits to a health care provider
or one visit and a regimen of continuing treatment, or incapacity due to pregnancy, or incapacity due
to a chronic condition. Other conditions may meet the definition of continuing treatment.

An employee does not need to use this leave entitlement In one block. Leave can be taken intermittently
or on a reduced leave schedule when medically necessary. Employees must make reasonable efforts to

Page 14 Revised 2/24/2022



schedule leave for planned medical treatment so as not to unduly disrupt the City’s operations. Leave
due to qualifying exigendes may also be taken on an intermittent basis,

The City may require use of accrued paid leave while taking FMLA leave. In order to use paid leave for
FMLA leave, employees must comply with the City’s normal paid leave policies. Employees must provide
30 days advance notice of the need to take FMLA ieave when the need is foreseeable. When 30 days’
notice is not possible, the employee must provide notice as soon as practicable and generally must
comply with the Gty's normal call-in procedures.

Employees must provide sufficient information so that the City can determine if the leave may qualify
for FMLA protection and the anticipated timing and duration of the leave. Sufficient information may
include that the employee is unable to perform job functions; the family member is unable to perform
daily activities, the need for hospitalization or continuing treatment by a health care provider, or
drcumstances supporting the need for miilitary family leave. Employees also must inform the employer
if the requested leave is for a reason for which FMLA leave was previously taken or certified. Employees
will be required to provide a certification and periodic recertification supporting the need for leave. If
you have any questions about FMLA leave, please contact The City Clerk.

4.15 MILITARY LEAVE [USERRA]

The City complies with applicable federal and state law regarding military leave and re-employment
rights. Unpaid military leave of absence will be granted to members of the uniformed services in
acoordance with the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 (with
amendments) and all applicable state law. Appropriate documentation of the need for the leave is
required to be submitted to the City Clerk prior to the leave unless military necessity makes this
impossible. An employee returning from military leave of absence will be reinstated to his or her previous
or similar job in accordance with state and federal law. You must notify your manager of your intent to
return to employment based on requirements of the law. For more information regarding status,
compensation, benefits and reinstatement upon retumn from military leave, please contact the City Clerk.

4.16 JURY DUTY AND WITNESS LEAVE "

Empioyees shall be granted a leave of absence with pay any time they are required to report for jury
duty or jury service. Employees shall retum any salary compensation for jury duty they received to
the Employer.

Employees required to appear, pursuant to a subpoena and as a result of thelr position with the City,
before a court or other public body, shall be granted a leave of absence with pay for the period
necessary to fulfill their dvic duties and responsibilities. Employees shall return any salary
compensation they receive from the court or other public body to the Employer.

4.17 VOTING LEAVE - Iowa Code § 49.109

Any person entitled to vote at an election in this state who does not have three consecutive hours in
the period between the time of the opening and the time of the closing of the palls during which the
person is not required to be present at work for an employer, is entitled to such time off from work time
to vote as will in addition to the person's nonworking time total three consecutive hours during the time
the polls are open. Application by any employee for such absence shall be made individually and in
writing prior to the date of the election, and the employer shall designate the period of time to be taken.
The employee is not liable to any penalty nor shall any deduction be made from the person's regular
salary or wages on account of such absence.

4.18 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

In the event of death in the immediate family of an employee or the employee’s spouse, the employee
shall be granted 32 hours leave of absence with pay to make household adjustments, arrange for

Page 15 Revised 2/24/2022



funeral services, or to attend funeral services. In the event of death of an employee’s aunt or unde,
the employee shall be granted up to eight (8) hours leave of absence with pay to attend funeral
services. Authorization for bereavement and funeral leave shall be subject to the employee’s
submission of a copy of the obituary for the individual who has deceased including documentation
regarding the date, time and location of the funeral, and a copy of the funeral memarial card from the
service,

The immediate family shall include spouse, domestic partner, parent, child, grandchild, grandparent,
sibling, and comparable in-laws of present spouse. Also included are step-parents, step-children, and
step-siblings.

4.19 WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE AND DISABILITY LEAVE

Workers’ compensation is a no-fault system designed to provide benefits to all employees for work-
related injuries. Workers’ compensation insurance coverage is paid for by the employer and governed
by state law. The workers’ compensation system provides for coverage of medical treatment and
expenses, occupational disability leave, rehabilitation services, as well as payment for lost wages due
to work-related injuries. If you are injured on the job, no matter how slightly, you are to report the
incident immediately to your supervisor, Consistent with applicable state law, failure to report an injury
within a reasonable period of time could jeopardize your daim for benefits.

To receive workers” compensation benefits, notify your supervisor immediately of your claim. If your
injury Is the result of an on-the-job accident, you must fill out an accident report. You may be required
to submit a medical release before you can return to work.

4.20 COBRA

COBRA, the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Recandliation Act, provides the opportunity for employees
and their beneficiaries to continue health insurance coverage under the City health plan when a
"qualifying event" coutd result in the loss of eligibllity. Qualifying events include resignation,
termination of employment, death of an employee, reduction in hours, a leave of absence, divorce or
legal separation, entittement to Medicare, or where a dependent child no longer meets eligibitity
requirements. Please contact the City Clerk to learn more about your COBRA rights.

4.21 4578 Plan

All regular full-time employees who have completed at least 90 days of employment are eligible to
participate in the City’s 457B plan. The City of Cresco does not provide matching funds. This is similar
to a 401K Plan and pre-tax contributions or a ROTH is available. Please refer to your Summary Plan
Description (SPD) provided by the benefits administrator for specifics. Should you have any other
questions about pension rights, please consult with the City Clerk. This benefit, as well as other
benefits, may be canceled or changed at the discretion of the City, unless otherwise required by law,

5.0 HIRING AND ORIENTATION POLICIES
5.1 EEO STATEMENT AND NON-HARASSMENT POLICY
Equal Opportunity Statement

Our City is committed to the principles of equal empioyment. We are committed to complying with all
federal, state, and local laws providing Equal Employment Opportunities, and all other employment laws
and regulations. It is our intent to maintain a work environment that is free of harassment or
discrimination because of sex, race, religion, color, national origin, physical or mental disability, genetic
information, marital status, age, sexual orientation, gender identity, military service, veteran status, or

Page 16 Revised 2/24/2022



any other status protected by federal, state or local laws. The City is dedicated to the fulfillment of this
policy in regard to all aspects of employment, induding but not limited to recruiting, hiring, placement,
transfer, training, promotion, rates of pay, and other compensation, termination and all other terms
conditions and privileges of employment,

The City will conduct a prompt and thorough Investigation of all allegations of discrimination or any
violation of the City’s Equal Employment Opportunity Policy in a confidential manner. The City will take
appropriate corrective action, if and where warranted. The City prohibits retaliation against any
employee who provides information about, complains, or assists in the investigation of any complaint
of discrimination or violation of the City’s Equal Employment Opportunity Policy.

We are all responsible for uphoiding the City’s Equal Employment Opportunity policy and any claimed
violations of that policy should be brought to the attention of your supervisor and/or Personnel
Committee,

Policy Against Workplace Harassment

The City of Cresco has a strict policy against all types of workplace harassment, including sexual
harassment and other forms of workplace harassment based upon an individual's sex, race, religion,
color, national origin, physical or mental disability, marital status, age, sexual orientation, gender
identity or any other status protected by federal, state or local laws. All forms of harassment of, or by,
employees, vendors, visitors, customers, and clients are strictly prohibited and will not be tolerated.

Policy Against Sexual Harassment

Sexual harassment is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other
verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when (1) submission to such conduct is made either
explicitly or implicitly as a term or condition of an individual’s employment (2) submission to, or rejection
of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment decisions affecting such individual
or (3) such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual’s work
performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment.

While it is not possible to Identify each and every act that constitutes or may constitute sexual
harassment, the following are some examples of sexual harassment: (a) unwekome requests for sexual
favors; (b) lewd or derogatory comments or jokes; () comments regarding sexual behavior or the body
of another employee; (d) sexual innuendo and other vocal activity such as catcalls or whisties; (e)
obscene letters, notes, emails, invitations, photographs, cartoons, articles, or other written or pictorial
materials of a sexual nature; (f) repeated requests for dates after being informed that interest is
unwelcome; (g} retaliating against an employee for refusing a sexual advance or reporting an incident
of possible sexual harassment to City of Cresco or any government agency; (h) offering or providing
favors or empioyment benefits such as promoations, favorable evaluations, favorable assighed duties or
shifts, etc., in exchange for sexual favors; and (i) any unwanted physical touching or assaults, or
biocking or impeding movements.

Other Workplace Harassment

Other workplace harassment is verbal or physical conduct that insults or shows hostility or aversion
towards an individual because of the individual’s sex, race, religion, color, national origin, physical or
mental disability, marital status, age, sexual orlentation, gender identity or any other status protected
by federal, state or local laws, and that: (1) contributes to or has the effect of <reating an intimidating,
hostile or offensive working environment; (2) unreasonably interferes with an individual's work
performance; or (3) otherwise adversely affects an individual’s employment opportunities,

Page 17 Revised 2/24/2022



Again, while it is not possible to list all the drcumstances that constitute other forms of workplace
harassment, the following are some examples of conduct that may constitute workplace harassment:
(a) the use of disparaging or abusive words or phrases, slurs, negative stereotyping, or threatening,
intimidating or hostile acts that relate to the above protected categories; (b) written or graphic material
that insults, stereotypes or shows aversion or hostility towards an individual or group because of one of
the above protected categories and that is placed on walls, bufletin boards, emall, voicemail or elsewhere
on the City’s premises, or circulated in the workplace; and (c) a display of symbols, slogans or items
that are associated with hate or intolerance towards any select group.

Piscrimination and harassment will not be tolerated in the workplace. Any employee who feels
that he or she has witnessed, or been subject to, any form of discrimination or harassment is required
to immediately notify their supervisor, the City Clerk, or Public Works Director.

The City of Cresco prohibits retaliation against any employee who provides information about,
complains, or assists in the investigation of any complaint of harassment or discrimination.

We will promptly and thoroughly investigate any daim and take appropriate action where we find a
claim has merit. Discipline for violation of this policy may include, but is not limited to reprimand,
suspension, demotion, transfer, and discharge, If the City determines that harassment or discrimination
occurred, corrective action will be taken to effectively end the harassment. As necessary, the City may
monitor any Incident of harassment or discrimination to assure the inappropriate behavior has stopped.
In all cases, the City will follow up as necessary to ensure no retaliation for making a complaint or
cooperating with an investigation.

5.2 DISABILITY ACCOMMODATION

The City complies with federal and state disability regulations, including the Americans with Disabilitics
Act (ADA). Qualified applicants or employees who inform the City that they have a physical or mental
disability, which requires accommodation in order for them to perform the essential functions of their
Jobs should inform the City Clerk of this so that we can together discuss what accommodations are
available and appropriate.

Procedure for reasonable accommodation requests:

» Employee advises the City Clerk of the need for accommodation. Employee completes a
Request for Accommodation form and gives it to the City Clerk,

s The accommodation request will be discussed with the employee and the employee’s
supervisor.

¢ The employee may be required to provide documentation supporting a disability, including
medical ceriification.

+ If a reasonable appropriate accommodation is readily available, the request will be approved
and the accommedation implemented,

+ If an accommodation is not readily ascertainable; the matter will be pursued further with
assistance from appropriate external resources,

The City will consider the request but reserves the right to offer its own accommodation to the extent
permitted by law. The City will consider cost, the effect that an accommodation will have on current
established policies and the burden on operations, induding other employees, when determining a
reasonable accommadation.

5.3 RELIGIOUS ACCOMMODATION ,
The City of Cresco Is dedicated to treating the religious diversity of all our employees equally and with
respect. Employees may request an accommodation when their religious beliefs cause a deviation from

Page 18 Revised 2/24/2022



the City of Cresco’s dress code, schedule, basic job duties, or other aspects of employment, The City
will consider the request but reserves the right to offer its own accommodation fo the extent permitted
by law. Accommodations may include but are not limited to changes in current job conditions, a change
in position, an exception to the dress code, paid/unpaid leave time, etc. The City will consider cost, the
effect that an accommodation will have on current established policies and the burden on operations,
including other employees, when determining a reasonable accommodation. At no time will the City
question the validity of a person’s belief.

5.4 POSTING OF OPENINGS

The City of Cresco believes that ail positions need to be staffed by competent individuals. All vacandes
in any job classification or new job openings shall be posted on the employee bulletin board for a period
of 10 days.

5.5 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Clty of Cresco is concerned about conflicts of interest, which are situations in which a public
official or employee, contrary to an absolute duty to act for the benefit of the public, is in a situation
to explolt his or her position for personal benefit, whether financial or not. Any actual or potential
conflict of interest between an employee of the City and a supplier, distributor, or contractor to the
City, must be disdosed by the employee to the City Clerk. If an actual or potential conflict of interest
is determined to exist, the City will take such steps as it deems necessary to reduce or eliminate this
conflict.

5.6 EMPLOYMENT OF RELATIVES AND FRIENDS

Due to potential for perceived or actual conflicts, such as favoritism or personal conflicts, the City of
Cresco will hire or consider other employment actions concerning relatives of persons currently
employed only if: a) candidates for employment will not be working directly for, or supervising, a
relative, and b) candidates for employment will not occupy a position in the same line of authority in
which employees can Inltiate or participate in decisions involving a direct benefit to the relative, Such
decisions include hiring, retention, transfer, promotion, wages and leave requests. This policy applies
to all current employees and candidates for employment.

5.7 JOB DESCRIPTIONS

The City of Cresco attempts to maintain 2 job description for each position. If you do not have a copy
of a current job description, you should request one from your supervisor. Job descriptions prepared by
the City of Cresco serve as an outline only. You may be required to perform job duties not within your
written job description. Furthermore, the City may have to revise, add to, or delete from your job duties
according to City needs, On occasion, the City may need to revise job descriptions with or without
advance notice to the employee. -

If you have any questions regarding your job description, or the scope of your duties, please speak with
your supervisor or the City Clerk.

5.8 NEW EMPLOYEES AND PROBATION PERIODS

The first 90 days of your employment is considered a probation period. During this perled, you will
become familiar with the City of Cresco and your job responsibilities. During this time, we will have the
opportunity to manitor the quality and value of your performance and make any necessary adjustments
in your job description or responsibilities. Your probation period with the City can be shortened or
lengthened as deemed appropriate by management and the City Clerk. Completion of this probation

Page 19 Revised 2/24/2022



period does not imply guaranteed or continued employment. Nothing that occurs during or after this
pertod should be construed to change the nature of the “at-will” employment relationship.

5.9 TRAINING PROGRAM

Employee training Is done on an individual basis by the department supervisor. Even if an employee has
had previous experience in their specified functions, it is necessary for them to leam our specific
procedures, as well as the responsibilities of the specific position. If you ever feel you require additional
training, please ask your supervisor.

5.10 PROOF OF CITIZENSHIP AND RIGHT TO WORK

All new hires and current employees are required by federal faw to verify their identity and eligibility to
work in the United States. You will be required to complete federal Form I-9 on the first day of
employment. If this form and verification of employment eligibility is not completed during the first three
days of employment, we are required by law to terminate your employment.

5.11 PERSONAL DATA CHANGES

It is your obligation to provide the City with all of your current contact information, including current
mailing address and telephone number.

6.0 PERFORMANCE, DISCIPLINE, LAYOFF, AND TERMINATION
6.1 PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT

The City of Cresco will make efforts to periodically review your work performance. The performance
improvement process will take place as business needs dictate. You may specifically request that your
supervisor assist you in developing a performance improvement plan at any time,

The performance improvement process is a means for increasing the quality and value of your work
performance. Your initlative, effort, attitude, job knowledge, and other factors will be addressed. You
must understand that a ‘positive job performance review does not guarantee a pay raise or continued
employment. City pay raises and promotions are based on numerous factors, only one of which is job
performance.

6.2 PROMOTIONS

It is the City’s policy to fill open positions with the most qualified candidate, either internal or extemal.
Promotions are made on an equal opportunity basis according to employees possessing the needed
skills, education, experience, and other qualifications that are required for the job. All open positions
will be posted internally for 10 days and may be advertised externally as well.

All employees promoted into new job positions will undergo a 90-day probation period as described in
the New Empioyees and Probation Periods (section 5.8). Such employees will continue to receive City
benefits for which they are eligible.

6.3 PAY RAISES

Depending on the City’s financial heaith and other factors, efforts will be made to give pay raises
consistent with the City’s financial situation, job performance, and the consumer price index. The City
of Cresco may also make individuatl pay raises based on merit or due to a change of job position.

6.4 TRANSFER

The City of Cresco may transfer your employment from one position to ancther with or without notice
or upon request by an employee and management approval. Transfers in excess of 90 days may be

Page 20 Revised 2/24/2022



considered final and your paycheck may be increased or decreased consistent with the pay scale for
your new position.

6.5 WORKFORCE REDUCTIONS (LAYOFFS)

When it is necessary to reduce staffing, the City will try to do this through attrition. However, if
necessary based upon the needs of the City, the City may decide to implement a reduction in force
(RTF). We acknowifedge that RIFs can be a trying experience for management and employees alike, and
the City will make its best effort to make sound business decisions while acknowledging the needs of
its workforce,

6.6 STANDARDS OF CONDUCT

The City of Cresco wishes to create a work environment that promotes job satisfaction, respect,
responsibility, integrity, and value for all of our employees, residents, customers, and other
stakeholders. Every employee has a shared responsibility toward improving the quality of our work
environment. By deciding to work at this City, you agree to follow the City's rules,

While it Is impossible to list every item that could be considered misconduct in the workplace, what is
outlined here is a list of commonsense infractions that could result in discipline, up to and including
immediate termination of employment. This policy is not intended to limit the City’s right to discipline
or discharge employees for any reason permitted by law. In fact, while we value our employees, the
City retains the right to terminate an employee on an “at-wili” basis.

Examples of inappropriate conduct include:

¢ Violation of the policles and procedures set forth in this handbook

*» Possessing, using, distributing, selling, or negotiating the sale of drugs or other controlled
substances or being under the influence of alcohol during working hours on City property
(including City vehidles), In City uniform, or on City business

¢ Inaccurate reporting of hours worked by you or any other employee;

»  Providing inaccurate, incomplete or misleading information in interviews or the preparation of
any employment related document including, but not limited to, job applications, personnel
flles, employment review documents, Intra-City communication, communications with those
outside the City, or expense records

¢ Taking or destroying City property

» Possession of potentially hazardous or dangerous property (where not permitted) such as
firearms, weapons, chemicals, etc., without prior authorization

« Fighting with, or harassment of, any fellow employee, vendor, or customer

* Unauthorized or excessive use of City property or the property of any visitor, customer, or

fellow employee, including but not limited to: vehides, supplies, telephones, mail, and

computers

Disclosure of proprietary information of the City, its customers, or fellow employees

Refusal or failure to foliow directions or to perform a requested or required job task

Refusal to cooperate in a workplace investigation

Refusal or failure to folfow safety rules and procedures

e Excessive tardiness or absence

¢ Smoking in non-designated areas

+  Working unauthorized overtime

+ Solicitation of fellow employees in work areas during working time (see section 7.9)

¢ Failure to dress according to City policy

» Use of obscene or otherwise inappropriate language or conduct in the workplaoz

» Outside employment which interferes with your ability to perform your job at this City
Page 21 Revised 2/24/2022

* & @



¢ Gambling on City premises

+ Lending keys or keycards to City property to unauthorized persons

¢ The Harassment or discrimination against an employee, customer, or visitor because of that
person’s race, religlon, color, sex, age, sexual preference, gender identity, disabillty, or national
origin (see section 5.1)

Failure to comply with this policy can result in disciplinary action, up to and including immediate
termination of employment. Nothing in this policy is intended to limit employee tights under the National
Labor Relations Act or the Iowa Public Employment Relations Act.

6.7 CRIMINAL ACTIVITY; ARRESTS

Involvement in criminal activity (whether on or off City property) may result in disciplinary action
including suspension or termination of employment. Disciplinary action depends upon a review of all
factors involved, including whether or not the employee’s action was work-related, the nature of the
act, or circumstances which adversely affect attendance or performance. Any disciptinary action is not
dependent upon the disposition of any case in court.

Employees are expected to be on the job, ready to work, when scheduled. Inability to report to work
as scheduled as a result of an arrest may lead to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of
employment, for violation of attendance policy (section 3.10) or job abandonment (section 3.11).

Any disciplinary action taken will be based on information reasonably available, This information may
come from witnesses, police, or any other source as long as management has reason to view the source
as credible,

6.8 DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY

The City of Cresco considers drug or alcahol abuse to be serious matters which wili not be tolerated,
The City absolutely prohibits employees from using, selling, possessing, or being under the influence of
illegat drugs, alcohol, a controfled substance or a prescription drug not medically authorized while at
their job, on City property, or while on work time.

Therefore, it is the City’s policy that:

1. Employees shall not report to work under the influence of alcohol, illegal drugs, or any controlled
substance or prescription drug not medically authorized.

2. Employees shall not possess or use aloohol, illegal drugs, or any controlled substance or
prescription drug not medically authorized while on City property or on City business.

The City recognizes that drug/aicohol testing is a necessary part of a comprehensive program to
maintain a drug-free workplace. Accordingly, the City reserves the right to require a drug or alcohol test
of any employee on a random basis, after an accident, or based upon reasonable suspicion, Reasonable
suspicion includes, but is not limited to, physical evidence of use, giving the appearance of being under
the influence, the causing of an acddent, or a substantial drop off in work performance. Failure to take
a requested test may lead to discipline, Incuding possible termination of employment,

The City also cautions against use of prescribed or over-the-counter medication which can affect an
employee’s ability to perform his or her job safely or the use of prescribed or over-the-counter
medication in a manner violating the recommended dosage or instructions from the doctor, Employees
must have a valid prescription for any prescription medication (or medical marijuana) used by employees
while working for the City. Please inform your supervisor prior to working under the influence of a
prescribed or over-the-counter medication that may affect your ability to perform your job safely. If the
City determines that the prescribed or over-the-counter medication does not pose a safety risk, you will

Page 22 Revised 2/24/2022



be allowed to work. Failure to comply with these guidelines concerning prescription or over-the-counter
medication may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

Violations

A violation of this policy (section 6.8) will result in disciplinary action up to and including termination of
employment. The refusal to submit to a drug or alcohol test as provided for in this policy, or refusal to
sign a consent form, will be subject to discipline induding termination of employment,

6.9 DISCIPLINARY PROCESS

Violation of City policies or procedures may result in disciplinary action including demotion, transfer,
leave without pay, or termination of employment. The City encourages a system of progressive discipline
depending on the type of prohibited conduct. However, the City is not required to engage in progressive
discipline and may discipline or terminate an employee where he or she violates the rules of conduct,
or where the quality or value of the employee’s work fails to meet expectations at any time. Again, any
attempt at progressive discipline does not imply that your employmerit is anything other than on an “at
will” basis.

In appropriate circumstances, management will provide the employee first with a verbal waming, then
with one or more written wamings, and If the conduct is not sufficiently altered, eventual demotion,
transfer, forced leave, or termination of employment. Your supervisor will make every effort possible to
allow you to respond to any disdplinary action taken. Understand that while the City is concerned with
consistent enforcement of our policies, the City is not obligated to follow any disciplinary or grievance
procedure (except for employees covered under the collective Bargaining Unit Local 1068) and that
depending on the circumstances, employees may be disciplined or terminated without any prior warning
oF procedure.

6.10 PROBLEM SOLVING PROCEDURE

We strive to provide a comfortable, productive, legal, and ethical work environment. To this end, the
City wants you to bring any problems, concerns, or grievances you have about the work place to the
attention of your supervisor and, if necessary, to the Public Works Director or City Clerk. To help manage
conflict resolution we have instituted the following problem-solving procedure;

If you believe there is inappropriate conduct or activity on the part of the City, management, its
employees, vendors, customers, or any other persons or entities related to the City, bring your concerns
to the attention of your supervisor at a time and place that will allow the supervisor to properly listen
to your concern. Most problems can be resolved informally through dialogue between you and your
immediate supervisor. If you have discussed this matter with your supervisor before and do not believe
you have received a sufficient response, or if you believe your supervisor is the source of the problem,
we request you present your concemns to the City Clerk or Public Works Director. Please indicate what
the problem is, those persons involved in the problem, efforts you have made to resolve the problem,
and any suggested solution you may have. The Personnel Committee may be consulted if the matter
cannot be resolved. It is the purpose of this problem-solving procedure to help maintain a work
envirohment with respect and responsibility towards each other.

6.11 REPORTING AND DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS

You have a duty as a city employee to report any unethical conduct or actions by any director,
supervisor, or employee that does not directly comply with the Ethics Code (section 2.2). If it is found
that you have violated the code or you failed to report a known or suspicious violation of the code, it
shall result in disciplinary actions against you. No employee shall retaliate against another employee or
person for submitting a complaint. If it is found that there has been retaliation for the complaint, there

Page 23 Revised 2/24/2022



will be disciplinary measure taken toward the retaliator(s). If you want to file a complaint you can do
so with complete confidentiality to a supervisor or human resources to resolve the problem. As an
employee, you will be expected to operate under the code of ethic set forth by the dity. Failure to do so
will result in disdiplinary measures that can result into termination or other consequences. It may also
result in civil or criminal prosecution and/or suit by the city to recover losses or damages resiufting from
the violation,

6.12 EXIT INTERVIEW

You may be asked to participate in an exit interview when you leave City employment. The purpose of
the exit interview is to provide management with greater insight into employee relations and to avold’
unnecessary employee claims. Your cooperation in the exit interview process is appreciated.

6.13 POST-EMPLOYMENT REFERENCE POLICY '

Itis Gity policy is to confirm only dates of employment, job title and compensation for former employees.
Please forward any requests for employment verification to the City Clerk.

If the former employee is requested to provide a prospective employer with additional information by
way of reference, the employee must sign a form that holds the City and the prospective employer
harmless from any claims related to any information provided In response to that reference. Please
contact the City Clerk for the release form,

7.0 GENERAL POLICIES
7.1 DRIVING RECORD

All employees required to operate a motor vehicle as part of their employment duties must maintain a
valid driver’s license and an acceptable driving record, The City may run a motor vehicle department
check to determine an employee’s driving record. It is yowr responsibility to provide a copy of your
current driver’s license for your personnel file. Any changes in your driving record, including, but not
limited to, driving infractions, must be reported to the City.

State law requires all motorists to carry auto liability insurance. Employees using their own vehicle as a
part of their employment duties must carry insurance.

7.2 USE OF CITY VEHICLES

City vehides are to be used for City business only. Unless the use of the vehicle has been approved
for personal use, personal or outside business use is strictly prohibited.

Drivers of City vehidles are to immediately report all infractions or violations while driving a City vehicle
and all restrictions, suspensions, or revocations against their driver’s license to thelr supervisor or the
City Clerk immediately.

When a City vehide cannot be operated, is unsafe for use, or has been damaged, notify a supervisor
immediately. The driver of a City vehicle is responsible for the vehicle while it is in his or her charge and
must not permit unautherized persons to drive it. The driver is responsible for the daily housekeeping
of the vehide; it is to remain clean and unduttered.

Employees who drive a vehicle during the course of their employment may not use any cell
phone/mobile device or other communication device while driving. No person shall operate a motor
vehidle while under the influence of alcohot or a chemical substance or other substance that can impair
judgment,

Page 24 Revised 2/24/2022



Multiple moving violations that appear on the Annual State Department of Motor Vehide Check will
result in suspension of rights to drive a City vehicle or drive a personal vehicle on City business.
Suspension of rights will continue until one (1) year has passed with no infractions. If there are
persistent and ongoing problems with driving infractions, and driving a vehicle is a part of successful
execution of job responsibilities, termination of employment is possible.

7.3 PERSONNEL AND MEDICAL RECORDS

The City malntains a personnel and medical file for every employee. Every effort will be made to keep
your personnel and medical records confidential, Accessis on a “need-to-know” basis only. This includes,
but is not limited to supervisors and others in management reviewing the file for possible promotion,
transfer or layoff.

If an employee wishes to review his or her personnel or medical file, he or she may do so after giving
the City reasonable notice. Inspection must occur in the presence of a City representative. All requests
by an outside party for information contained in your personnel file will be directed to the City Clerk,
which is the only department authorized to give out such information. However, pursuant to Iowa Code
Section 22.7(11)(a), certain information contained in City employee personnel records shall be public
records, including the fact that the employee was voluntarily demoted, discharged, or that the employee
resigned in lieu of discharge, as well as the documented reasons and rationale for the disciplinary action.

7.4 EMPLOYEE PRIVACY AND RIGHT TO INSPECT

City property, induding but not limited to lockers, phones, computers, tablets, desks, work place areas,
vehicles, or machinery, remains under the control of the City and is subject to inspection at any time,
without notice to the employee, and without the employee’s presence, Employees should have no
expectation of privacy in any of these areas, We assume no respansibility for the loss of, or damage to,
any employee property maintained on City premises including that kept in lockers and desks.

7.5 VOICEMAIL, EMAIL AND INTERNET POLICY

This Voicemail/Email/Internet Policy is intended to provide each employee of the City with the guidelines
associated with the use of the City’s voicemail/email/intemet system (the system). This policy applies
to all employees, contractors, vendors, partners, or assodiates, and any others accessing and/or using
the City's system through onsite or remote terminals.

General Provisions

e The system, and all data transmitted or recelved through the system, are the exdlusive property
of the City. No individual shouid have any expectation of privacy in any communication over this
system. Any individual permitted to have access to the City’s system will be given a voicemail,
email and/or intemet address and/or access code, and will have use of the system, consistent
with this policy.

¢ The City reserves the right to monitor, Intercept, and/or review all data transmitted, received, or
downloaded over the system. Any individual who Is given access to the system is hereby given
notice that the City may exerdise this right periodically, without prior notice and without the prior
consent of the employee.

* The City’s interests in monitoring and intercepting data include, but are not limited to: protection
of City proprietary and dlassified data; managing the use of the City’s computer system;
preventing the transmission or receipt of inappropriate materials by employees; and/or assisting
the employee in the management of electronic data during periods of absence. No individual
should Interpret the use of password protection as creating a right or expectation of privacy. In
order to protect everyone involved, no one can have a right or expectation of privacy with regards
to the receipt, transmission or storage of data on the City voicemail/email/internet systemn.

Page 25 Revised 2/24/2022



Any employee who abuses the privilege of access to the City's voicemail, email, or the interet system
will be subject to corrective action, up to and including termination of employment. If necessary, the
City will also advise law enforcement officials of any ilegal conduct.

7.6 SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY

The City of Cresco understands that soclal media is widely used. However, use of social media also
presents certain risks and carries with it certain responsibilities. As such, we have established the
following guidelines for appropriate employee use of sodal media. Managers and supervisors should
use the supplemental Social Media Management Guidelines for additional guidance in administering the
policy. '

Guidelines

In the rapidly expanding world of electronic communication, “social media” can mean many things.
Social media includes all means of communicating or posting information or content of any sort on the
internet, Including to your own or someone else’s web log or blog, journal or diary, personal website,
social networking or affinity website, web bulletin board or a chat room, whether or not associated or
affiliated with the City of Cresco, as well as any other form of electronlc communication.

When considering your activities on social media outlets, keep in mind that any of your conduct that
adversely affects your job performance or the performance of feliow associates/employees, or that
adversely affects customers or suppliers of the City of Cresco or the City of Cresco's legitimate business
interests may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment,

Carefully read the Ethics Code (section 2.2) and the Discrimination & Harassment Prevention Policy
(section 5.1) and ensure your postings are consistent with these policies. Inappropriate postings that
may include discriminatory remarks, slander, harassment, and threats of violence or similar
inappropriate or unlawful conduct wilf not be toierated,

Always be fair and courteous to fellow associates, customers, members, suppliers, or people who work
on behalf of the City. Also, keep in mind that you are more fikely to resolve work-related complaints by
speaking directly with your co-workers or by utilizing our Problem-Solving Procedure (section 6.10)
rather than by posting complaints to a social media outlet. When posting, avoid using statements,
photographs, video or audio that reasonably could be viewed as malidous, dishonest, obscene,
threatening or intimidating, that disparage customers, members, associates or suppliers, or that might
constitute harassment or bullying. Examples of such conduct might include offensive posts meant to
intentionally harm someone’s reputation or posts that could contribute to a hostile work environment
on the basis of race, sex, disability, religion or any other status protected by law or City policy.

Make sure you are always honest and accurate when posting information or news, and if you make a
mistake, correct it quickly. Remember that the intemet archives aimost everything; therefore, even
deleted postings can be searched. Never post any information or rumors that you know to be false
about the City, fellow associates, members, customers, suppliers, or people working on behalf of City
of Cresco or competitors.

Express only your personal apinions. Never represent yourself as a spokesperson for City of Cresco and
be clear and open about the fact that you are an associate and that your views do not represent those
of City of Cresco, fellow associates, members, customers, suppliers or people working on behalf of City
of Cresco. It is best to incdlude a disclaimer such as “The postings on this site are my own and do not
necessarily reflect the views of City of Cresco.

Refrain from using social media while on work time or on City-provided equipment unless it is work-
related as authorized by your manager or consistent with the City Internet Policy (section 7.5). Do not

Page 26 Revised 2/24/2622



use City email addresses to register on social networks, blogs, or other online tools utilized for personal
use.

The City of Cresco prohibits taking negative action against any associate for reporting a possibie
deviation from this policy or for cooperating in an investigation. Any associate who retaliates against
another assodiate for reporting a possible deviation from this policy or for cooperating in an investigation
will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

If you have questions or need further guidance, please contact the City Clerk.
7.7 EMPLOYEE SUGGESTIONS

We welcome suggestions for better ways to do your job or to Improve the services of the City. Discuss
your ideas with your supervisor or another member of the management team.

We also encourage you to offer any suggestions derived from seminars, magazines, or other outside
sources of information you believe would add value to the City.

Any suggestions, innovations, inventions, or other matter created by you on work time or with City tools
or property are considered to be the property of the City.

7.8 CITY BULLETIN BOARDS

The City of Cresco maintains official bulletin boards located at the Cresco Street Shop, Theatre, Library,
Fitness Center and City Hall for the purpose of providing employees with its official notices, including
wage and hour laws, changes In policies, and other employment-related notices. At times the City may
also post information of general interest to the employees on the bulletin board, Please keep informed
about this material by periodically reviewing the bulletin boards. Only authorized personnel are allowed
to add and remove notices from the City bulletin boards.

7.9 NON-SOLICITATION POLICY

To avoid disruption of business operations or disturbance of employees, visitors, and others, the City
has implemented a Non-Solicitation Policy. For purposes of the Non-Solicitation Policy, “solicitation”
indudes canvassing, soliciting or seeking to obtain membership in or support for any organization,
requesting contributions, and posting or distributing handbills, pamphlets, petitions, or other materials
on City property or using City resources (including without limitation bulletin boards, computers, mail,
email and telecommunication systems, photocopiers, and telephone lists and databases), Solicitation
performed through verbal, written, or electronic means is covered by the Non-Solicitation Policy.
Employees are also prohibited from soliciting other employees for any cause during work time and/or
in work areas.

7.10 PERSONAL APPEARANCE AND DRESS CODE

Your personal appearance reflects on the reputation and integrity of the City. All employees are required
to report to work neatly groomed and dressed appropriately. You are expected to maintain personal
hygiene habits that are generally accepted in the community, i.e., dean clothing, good grooming and
personal hygiene, and appropriate sodal behavior.

7.11 PAYROLL ADVANCES AND LOANS
The City of Cresco does not make payroll advances or foans.
7.12 TELEPHONE USE

Qur phones are principally for work-related communications. Unless there is an emergency, employees
are required to limit long distance telephone calls to business purposes only. Employees should limit
personal use of the telephone to brief communications during rest periods where possible, Casual

Page 27 Revised 2/24/2022



conversation with friends and relatives during working hours is strongly discouraged. Telephorie use is
subject to the Voicemail/Email/Internet Usage Policy {section 7.5).

7.13 MAIL USE/ MAIL DELIVERY

Employees are required to limit usage of the City’s mail service to business purposes only. You may not
use the City address to receive personal mail. Do not use the City postage for your personal mail. If you
notice any suspicious packages or envelopes, please report this to the Police Department immediately,

7.14° OFF-DUTY USE OF CITY PROPERTY OR PREMISES

Employees may not use City property for personal use, or City property for use while off premises,
without prior written approval from their supervisor. Employees are responsible for returning City
property in good condition and repairing or replacing any property damaged as the result of perscnal
use or as the result of negligence. This includes using copy machines, computers, City products, or
office supplies for personal use without prior authorization.

It is the policy of the City to control off duty and nonworking-hour use of City faciiities either for business
or personal reasons. Employees are prohibited from using City facilities during off duty or non-working
hours without the written consent of their supervisor,

7.15 SECURITY

Every empioyee is responsible for helping to make this a secure work environment. Upon leaving work,
lock all desks, lockers, and doors protecting valuable or sensitive material in your work area and report
any lost or stolen keys, passes, or other similar devices to your supervisor immediately. You should
refrain from discussing with nonemployees spedifics regarding City security systems, alarms, passwords,
etc.

We also request that you immediately advise your supervisor of any known or potential security risks
and/or suspicious conduct of employees, customers, or guests of the City, Safety and security is the
responsibility of every employee and we rely on you to help us keep our premises secure.

7.16 COMPUTER SECURITY AND COPYING OF SOFTWARE

Software programs purchased and provided by the City are to be used only for creating, researching,
and processing City-related materials. By using the City’s hardware, software, and networking systems
you assume personal responsibility for their appropriate use and agree to comply with this policy and
other applicable City polides, as well as city, state, and federal laws and regulations.

All software acquired for or on behalf of the City or developed by City employees or contract personnel
on behalf of the City is and shall be deemed City property. 1t is the policy of the City to respect all
computer software rights and to adhere to the terms of all software licenses to which the City is a party.

Gity users may not duplicate any licensed software or related documentation for use either on City
premises or elsewhere unless the City is expressly authorized to do so by agreement with the licenser.
Unauthorized duplication of software may subject users and/or the City to both civil and criminal
penalties under the United States Copyright Act.

Users may not duplicate, copy, or give software to any outsiders including clients, contractors,
customers, and others, City users may use soRware on local area networks or on multiple machines
only in accordance with applicable license agreements entered into by the City.

7.17 THIRD PARTY DISCLOSURES

From time to time, our City may become involved in hews stories or potential or actual legal proceedings
of various kinds. When that happens, lawyers, former employees, newspapers, law enforcement

Fage 28 Revised 2/24/2022



agendies, and other outside persons may contact our employees to obtain information about the incident
or the actval or potential lawsuit,

If you receive such a contact, you should not discuss the matter with the caller but refer the call to the
Mayor, and then Immediately advise the City Clerk that the contact was made.

7.18 RECYCLING AND ENERGY POLICY

All sensitive or confidential materia! should be shredded or otherwise destroyed. The City tries to recycle
as much as possible. We encourage using recyding bins. Suggestions are welcome on how to reduce
waste material produced. Piease also make an effort to turn off any lights, equipment, faucets, and
other energy users, and to keep temperatures in City buildings in the most energy-efficient range while
maintaining reasonable employee comfort.,

7.19 MANDATORY COOPERATION IN WORKPLACE INVESTIGATIONS

Any workplace investigation conducted by management or their designee will receive complete
cooperation of all employees, Employees may be disciplined, up to and including termination, for making
any untrue statement or providing information that is dishonest, misleading, inaccurate or incomplete
during the course of the investigation and related procedures, Employees may also be disciplined, up
te and including termination, for impeding, obstructing or failing to cooperate with the investigation and
related procedures,

7.20 RESIDENCY REQUIREMENTS

To ensure rapid response to emergency calls, ali employees of the Police Department of the City must
reside within 2.5 miles of the city limits of Cresco. All employees of the Public Works Department of
the City must reside within 10 miles of the dity limits of Cresco as measured by road.

A new employee will be granted a ninety (90) day grace period, from the date of hire, in which to
comply with this provision.,

For purposes of this policy, residence shall mean the actual domicile of the employee where that
employee normally eats, sleeps, and maintalns the normal personal and household effects necessary
for daily living. “Residence” shall not include a place secured solely for the purpose of meeting the
requirements of this policy, which is maintained in addition to the employee’s actual place of residence
outside the City’s maximum limit.

8.0 SAFETY AND LOSS PREVENTION
8.1 GENERAL SAFETY POLICY

It is the responsibility of every employee of the City to maintain a healthy and safe work environment.
Please report all safety hazards and occupational illnesses or injuries to your supervisor immediately
and complete an occupational illness or injury form as needed. Failure to follow the City’s heaith and
safety rules can result in discipiinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

8.2 NON-SMOKING POLICY

The City of Cresco is concerned about the effect that smoking and second-hand smoke inhalation can
have on its employees and dients, Smoking in City- owned buildings and vehicles is prohibited.

8.3 POLICY AGAINST VIOLENCE

The safety and security of our employees, residents, tenants, vendors, contractors, and the general
public is of essential importance. Threats or acts of violence made by an employee against another
person’s life, health, well-being, family, or property wili not be tolerated. Any act of intimidation,

Page 29 Revised 2/24/2022



threat of viclence, or act of violence committed against any person on Clty property is prohibited. The
following definitions apply:

» Intimidation: A physical or verbal act toward another persen, the result of which causes that
person to reasonably fear for his or her safety or the safety of others.

+ Threat of violence: A physical or verbal act which threatens bodily harm to another person or
damage to the property of another.

* Act of violence: A physical act, whether or not it causes actual bodily harm to another person or
damage to the property of another,

No person shall possess or have control of any firearm, deadly weapon, or prohibited knife, asllegalty
defined, while on City property, except as required in the lawful course of business or as authorized by
law, |

It is a requirement that employees report to their supervisor or the City Clerk, in accordance with this
policy, any behavior that compromises the City’s ability to maintain a safe work environment. All reports
will be Investigated immediately and kept confidential, except where there is a legitimate need to know.

Employees who violate this policy may be subject to criminal charges as well as discipiine up to and
including immediate termination of employment.

Page 30 Revised 2/24/2022



ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT & REVIEW OF EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

By signing below, I acknowledge that I have received a copy of the July 2022
Employee Handbook and understand that it is my responsibility to read the
Employee Handbook in its entirety. I agree to comply with the rules, policies, and
procedures set forth herein, as well as any revisions made to the Employee Handbook
in the future. I also understand that if I violate the rules, policies, and procedures set
forth herein that I may be subject to discipline, up to and including termination of my
employment. :

I understand that the Employee Handbook contains information about the employment
policies and practices of the City. I understand that the policies outlined in this
Employee Handbook are management guidelines only, which in an on-going business
will require changes from time to time. I understand that the City retains the right to
make decisions involving employment as needed In order to conduct its work in a
manner that is benefidal to the employees and the City. I understand that this
Employee Handbook supersedes and replaces any and all prior Employee Handbooks
and any inconsistent verbal or written policy statements.

I understand that the Cresco City Council, reserves the right to revise, delete, and add
to the provisions of this Employee Handbook at any time. I understand that no oral
statements or representations can change the provisions of this Employee Handbook.
I understand that this Employee Handbook is not intended to create contractual
obligations with respect to any matters it covers and that the Employee Handbook
does not create a contract guaranteeing that I will be employed for any specific time
period. I understand nothing in this handbook is created to infringe on any available
legal rights.

I understand that this Employee Handbook refers to current benefit plans maintained
by the City and that I must refer to the actual plan documents and summary plan
descriptions as these documents are controlling,

If I have questions about the content or interpretation of the Employee Handbook, I
will ask my supervisor or the City Clerk.

Date

Signature of Employee

Print Name

Page 31 Revised 2/24/2022



